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Chariered Accountants

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of Reliance Telecom Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Corporate Insolvency Proceedings as per Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC)

The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (“NCLT”) admitted an insolvency
and bankruptcy petition filed by an operational creditor against Reliance Telecom Limited, and
appointed Resolution Professional who has been vested with management of affairs and powers of the
Board of Directors with direction to initiate appropriate action contemplated with extent provisiens of
the [nsolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016 and other related rules,

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Reliance Telecom Limited (“the Company™), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of changes in equity and the Statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements™).

[n our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except
for the possible effects of matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report,
the aforesaid financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS™) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its loss
(including other comprehensive loss) , the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

a)  We draw attention to Note no. 2.06 & 2.21 of the financial statements on “Assets Held for Sale
(AHS)” regarding Spectrum acquired on deferred payment basis classified as held for sale at
the value ascertained at the end of March 31, 2018, for the reasons referred to in the aforesaid
note and impact of the non-payment of spectrum instalments due to Department of
Telecommunication (DoT), Non determination of fair value of spectrum as on the reporting
date is not in compliance with Ind AS 105 “Non Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations”. Accordingly, we are unable to comment on the consequential impact, if any, on
the carrying amount of Assets Held for Sale and on the reported losses for the year ended
March 31, 2025.

b)  We draw attention to Note no. 2.18.01 of the financial statements regarding admission of the
Company into Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP"), and pending determination
of obligations and liabilities including various claims submitted by the Operational / financial /
other creditors and employees including interest payable on loans during CIRP. We are unable
to comment the accounting impact & disclosure thereof pending reconciliation and
determination of final obligation.

The Company accordingly has not provided interest on borrowings amounting to Rs. 21,757
lakh for the year ended March 31, 2025 & Rs. 1,37,927 lakh up to previous financial year P
calculated based on the basic rate of interest as per the terms of the loan. The Company further /700"
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has not provided foreign exchange loss amounting to Rs. 4,259 lakh for the year ended March
31, 2025 & foreign exchange loss of Rs. 37,510 lakh up to previous financial year, resulting in
understatement of loss by the said amounts. The Company has also not provided premium
payable on maturity of preference shares amounting to Rs. 40,500 lakh as at March 31, 2025
and Rs. 40,500 lakh as at March 31, 2024, Had such interest and foreign exchange variation as
mentioned above been provided, the reported loss for the vear ended March 31, 2025 would
have been higher by Rs. 26,016 lakh and Net worth of the Company would have been lower by
Rs. 2,41,953 lakh and Rs. 2,15,937 lakh as on March 31, 2025 and as on March 31, 2024
respectively. Non provision of interest and premium payable on maturity and non-recognition
of foreign exchange variation {gain)/ loss is not in compliance with Ind AS 23 “Borrowing
Costs™ and Ind AS 21 “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates™ respectively.

¢)  We draw attention to Note no. 2.21 & 2.23 of the financial statements, regarding pending
comprehensive review of carrying amount of all assets (including receivables, investments and
balances lying under Goods & Service Tax) & liabilities and non provision for impairment of
carrying value of the assets and write back of liabilities if any, pending completion of the CIRP
and various irregularities reported by the forensic auditor M/s BDO India LLP, appointed by
one of the lenders, in their forensic audit report for the period from April 01, 2013 to March 31,
2017 as communicated by certain banks and communication received from certain banks with
respect to willful defaulter and fraud. In the absence of comprehensive review as mentioned
above for the carrying value of all the assets and liabilities and unable to determine of potential
impact of communications from banks in respect of willful default / fraud, we are unable to
comment that whether any adjustment is required in the carrying amount of such assets and
liabilities and consequential impact, if any, on the reported losses for the year ended March 31,
2025. Non determination of fair value of financial assets & liabilities and impairment in
carrying amount for other assets and liabilities are not in compliance with Ind AS 109
“Financial Instruments”, Ind AS 36 “Impairment of Assets” and Ind AS 37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets”.

d)  We draw attention to Note no. 2.26 of the financial statements, regarding non adoption of Ind
AS 116 “Leases” effective from April 01, 2019 and the consequent impact thereof. The
aforesaid accounting treatment is not in accordance with the relevant Ind AS 116,

e)  We draw attention to Note no. 2.21 of the financial statements, regarding continuocus losses
incurred by the Company, current liabilities exceeding its current assets, default in repayment
of borrowings, default in payment of regulatory and statutory dues and pending application of
renewal of a Telecom License and potential impact of the matters stated in note no 2,23, This
situation indicates that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The accounts however have been prepared
by the management on a going concern basis for the reason stated in the aforesaid note. We
however are unable to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding
management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements, in view of ongoing CIRP, the outcome of which cannot be presently ascertained.

The Net worth of the Company excludes the effect of qualification under (a), (¢), (d) and (e) above
which are non-quantifiable as referred therein.

Continuation sheat...
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We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditot’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for qualified opinion
on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter Paragraph

We draw attention to Note no 2.25 of the financial statements, regarding provision of license fee and
spectrum usage charges based on management estimates pending special audit from Department of
Telecommunications, pursnant to the judgment of Hon’ble Supreme Court of India, vide its order
dated October 24, 2019 and status of payment thereof.

Qur opinion on the financial statement is not modified in respect of above matter.
Key Aundit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do riot provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matters stated in the Basis
for Qualified Opinion paragraph, we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our repott.

For matter below, our description of how key audit matters is addressed in our audit is provided in
that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Financial Statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matter below, provide the basis for our audit opinien on the
accompanying financial statements.

Key Audit Matter

| How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Valuation and disclosure of accrual estimates for legal claims, litigations, regulatory matters and
contingencies and deposits against the same legal matters including provision of license fee and spectrum
usage charges, pursuant to the judgment of Hon’ble Supreme Court of India, vide its order dated October

24,2019

The Company is involved as a party in legal
proceedings, including regulatory and other
governmental proceedings. The Company has also
deposited substantial amounts with regulatory
authorities against the demands in dispute, which
has been classified as deposit.

This area is significant to our audit, since the
accounting and disclosure for (contingent) legal
liabilities is complex and judgmental (due to the

Qur audit procedures included, amongst others,
testing the effectiveness of the Company's internal
controls around the identification and evaluation of
claims/provisions, proceedings and investigations at
different levels in the Company, and the recording
and continuous re-assessment of the related
(contingent) liabilities and provisions and disclosures.

We inquired with both internal legal staff including




Pathak H.D. ssociatesLLp

rtered Accountants

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

difficulty in predicting the outcome of the matter | Company's financial staff in respect of ongoing
and estimating the potential impact if the outcome | investigations or  claims, proceedings and
is unfavourable), and the amounts Involved are, or | investigations, inspected relevant correspondence,
can be, material to the financial statements as a | inspected the minutes of the meetings of the Audit
whole. Further reference is made to Note no. 2.23 | Committee and requested a confirmation from the
Contingent liabilities and note no, 2,25 on provision | group's in-house responsible officials and RP. Also
of Licence fees and Spectrum Usage Charges. the Company has obtained legal opinions in past
against these disputes. For claims settled during the
year, we vouched the payments, as appropriate, and
read the related orders to verify whether the
settlements were properly accounted for.

We also assessed the adequacy of the Company's
disclosure around legal claims, litigations, regulatory
matters and contingencies as included in Note no.
2.23 Contingent liabilities.

We consider management's conclusion on the
predicted cutcome and estimation of potential impact
reasonable and we assessed that the disclosures in
Note no. 2.23, Contingent liabilities are reasonable.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company'’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including annexures to
Board’s Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is & material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact, We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The financial Statements, which is the responsibility of the Company’s Management is relied upon by
the Resolution Professional based on the assistance provided by the Directors and taken on record by
the Resolution Professional as fully described in Note 2.41 of financial Statements.

The Company’s Management is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.

Continuation shest...



Pathak H.D. ssoclatesLLp

rtered Accountants

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management/Resolution Professional is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management/Resolution
Professional either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The management/Resolution Professional is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process read together with Note no. 2.41 of the financial statements.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform andit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls,

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

» Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors and Resolution Professional use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial

Continuation sheet..
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statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of cur auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
(i) in planning the scope of our andit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Other Matters

Pursuant to application filed by Ericsson India Pvt. Ltd. before the National Company Law Tribunal,
Mumbai Bench (“NCLT”) in terms of Section 9 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read
with the rules and regulations framed there under (“Code™), the NCLT had admitted the application
and ordered the commencement of corporate insolvency resolution process (“CIRP™) of Reliance
Telecom Limited ("the Company"), vide its orders dated May 15, 2018. The NCLT had appointed the
interim resolution professional of the Company vide its orders dated May 18, 2018. Thereafier, the
committee of creditors (“CoC”) of the Company, at the meetings of the CoC held on May 30, 2019, in
terms of Section 22 (2} of the Code, resolved with the requisite voting share, to replace the Interim
Resolution Professional with the Resolution Professional (“RP”) for the Company, which has been
confirmed by the NCLT in its orders dated June 21, 2019 {published on the website of the NCLT on
June 28, 2019). Reliance Communications Limited (being the Holding Company of the Compary)
and Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited (Fellow Subsidiary} are also undergoing CIRP
under the provisions of the Code and the RP is also the resolution professional of the aforesaid
companies.

The financial statements of the Company should be signed by the Chairperson or Managing Director
or Whole Time Director or in absence of all of them, it should be signed by any Director of the
Company who is duly authorized by the Board of Directors to sign the financial statements. As
mentioned in Note No 2.41 of the financial statements, in view of the ongoing CIRP, the powers of
the board of directors stand suspended and are exercised by the Resolution Professional“_ e
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure A" a statements on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) Except for the matters stated in Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, we have sought
and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b)  Except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis of Qualified opinion
paragraph above and matter stated in paragraph 2(j)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g} of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of
those books.

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended, except requirements of Ind AS 105 “Non-
Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”, Ind AS 23 “Borrowing Cost”, Ind
AS 21 “Effects of Changes in foreign exchange rates™, Ind AS 109 “Financial Instruments”,
Ind AS 36 “Impairment of Assets”, Ind AS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets” and Ind AS 116 “Leases”, with regard to matters described in the Basis of
Qualified Opinion paragraph above.

(e) The matters described under the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above and Qualified
Opinion paragraph of “Annexure B” to this report in our opinion, may have an adverse effect
on functioning of the Company and on the amounts disclosed in financial statements of the
Company;

(f)  On the basis of the written representations received from three directors of the Company as on
March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, these three directors are not
disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164
(2) of the Act, Further as mentioned in Note 2.39 of the financial statements, one of the director
of the Company has resigned from the position of director, however his resignation has not
been accepted for the reason stated in the said note and the Company has not received
declaration from this director in this regard, accordingly we are unable to comment whether
this director is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act,

Continuation sheet. .
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(g) The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above and paragraph 2(b) on
reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the Act above and paragraph 2(j){vi) below on reporting
under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended).

(hy With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B”.

(i)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, no remuneration is paid/ provided by the
Company to its directors during the vear.

(i}  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There are no amounts, which are required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
persen or entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

{¢) Based on our audit procedure that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause {a) and (b) contain any material misstatement,

v.  The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

Continuation sheet. .
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vi.  Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31,
2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software at the
application level. Further, as stated in note no 2.40, audit trail has been enabled at the
database level except at Data Definition Language & Data Manipulation Language to log
any direct data changes to the database in accounting software SAP for the year ended
March 31, 2025.

Further, during the course of audit, where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and
operated for the accounting software, we did not come across any instance of the audit
trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the andit trail has been preserved by the
Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention except for the database
level which has been enabled from June 2024,

For Pathak H. D. & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 107783 W/W100593

T

Jigar T. Shah

Partner

Membership No.161851

UDIN: 25161851BMOGBH1526

Date: May 27, 2025
Place: Mumbai

Continuation sheet...



Pathak H.D. ssociates LLp

rtered Accountants

‘Annexure A’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report in the Independent Aunditors Reports of even date to the members of
Reliance Telecom Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(i) (A) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and equipment including Asset Held
for Sale.

(b) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

{(b) The Company has transferred its Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) (Except Building) to
Assets Held for Sale (AHS) and has fully provided for Property, Plant and Equipment except
to the extent of scrap value. The Management has physically verified some of its PPE during
the year and no material discrepancies were identified on such physical verification.

{¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of immovable
properties, as disclosed in Note 2.01 of the financial statements, are held in the name of the
Company.

(d) Based on the records examined by us and information and explanation given to us by the
Management, the Company during the year has mot revalued its Property, Plant and
Equipment or intangible assets. Hence, the reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(¢) According to the information and explanation and representation given to us by the
Management, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition} Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The Company does not have any inventory. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b} As per the information and explanations given to us and books of accounts and records
examined by us, no working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from
banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets has been taken by the
Company. Therefore, the reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(iii) As per information and explanation provided to us and on the basis of verification of records
of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advance in nature of loans,
secured or unsecured, provided any guarantees or given securities or any investment made, to
companies, firms, Limited liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3(iii}(a),
3(iil)(b), 3(ii)(c), 3(iii)(d), 3(iii)(e) and 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable.

{iv) As per the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of verification of records
of the Company, the Company during the year, has not granted any loan, made investment
and provided guarantees and securities to the parties covered under section 185 and section

Continuation sheet.
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(v) In our opinien and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits from the public in accordance with relevant provisions of
Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under.
Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{vi) According to the information and explanation given to us, since the turnover of the Company
is below threshold limit, maintenance of cost records under sub-section 1 of Section 148 of
the Act, in respect of telecommunication activities is not applicable.

(vi) {(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, we observed that there are delays in amounts
deposited with appropriate authorities for amounts deducted/accrued in the books of account
in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, income tax, goods and
services tax, service tax, duty of customs, sales tax, value added tax, entry tax, employees’
state insurance, cess and other matetial statutory dues. As explained to us, the Company did
not have any dues on account of duty of excise. According to the information and
explanations given to us, undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, income
tax, goods and services tax, sales tax, value added tax, employees’ state insurance and other
material statutory dues which were in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable are as under:

Period to which
Name of Statute Nature of Amount the amount Due Date of
Dues (Rs.) Date Payment
relates
The Orissa Value Added VAT Various .
Tax Act, 2004 Payable 87,067 sl Dates | Umpaid
Tharkhand Value Added VAT Varicus ,
Tax Act, 2005 Payable 118,370 2OIfLS Dates finpaid
Jharkhand Central Sales Sales Tax Various .
Tax Act, 1956 Payable 7,003 SO Dates Unpaid
The Himachal Pradesh wWCT Various .
value added Tax Act,2003 payable §i555 2017-18 Dates Unpaid
The Maharashtra Value WCT 1.97.680 2016-17 & Various Unpaid
Added Tax Act, 2002 Pavable 0 2017-18 Dates pat
Jharkhand Value Added WCT Various .
Tax Act, 2005 Payable 6,378 e Dates | ©npaid
Madhya Pradesh Value WCT Various .
Added Tax Act,2002 Payable 45,202 2SS Dates Unpaid
Chhattisgarh Value WCT Various .
Added Tax Act, 2005 Payable 18285 EOLISIE Dates Lnpaid
The West Bengal Value WCT Various .
added Tax Act, 2003 payable 40,765 SOt Dates Uapeid
The West Bengal Value WCT Various .
added Tax Act, 2003 payable 18,752 A=t Dates Unpaid
Professional Tax Professional 2017-18 Various .
Act, 1957 — Various States | Tax payable Sl onwards Dates Unpaid
Tax Various
Income Tax Act, 1961 Deducted at 4,58,972 2017-18 Dates Unpaid
Source
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Nature of Amount Period to which Due Date of
Name of Statute the amount
Dues (Rs.) Date Payment
relates
Tax 07-11-
Incorme Tax Act, 1961 Deducted at | 20,00,000 2019-20 2019 Unpaid
Source
Tax Vari
Income Tax Act, 1961 Deducted at 816 2018-19 g Unpaid
g Dates
ource
Labour .
Labour Welfare Fund Welfare 80 2018-19 Various Unpaid
Fund Onwards Dates

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, details of statutory dues referred to in clause vii (a) above, which have not
been deposited as on March 31, 2025 on account of disputes are given below:

Amount* Forum where the
Name of the Statute Nature of dues (Rs. in Period . . .
Crore) dispute is pending
Local Sales Tax Act, Value | Sales Tax, VAT 7.42 | 1997-1998 to | Appellate Authority
Added Tax and Central and CST 2016-2017 upto Commissioner’s
Sales Tax Act Level
6.49 | 1997-1998 to | Tribunal
2007-08 ,
2010-2011
Goods and Service Tax Act, | Goods and 0.77 2017-18 & Assistant
2017 Service Tax 2018-19 Commissioner
0.33 2019-20 State Tax Officer
Entry Tax Act, 1976 Entry Tax 1.22 | 2005-2006 to | Appellate Authority
2009-2010, upto Commissioner’s
2011-2012t0 | Level
2013-2014,
2015-2016
7.26 | 2006-2007 to | Tribunal
2010-2011
1,40 1998-1999, High Court
1999-2003,
2010-2011 to
2016-2017
The Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 1.14 2005-2006, Appellate Authority
2006- 2007 | upto Commissioner’s
Level
34.16 | 2005-2006 to | Tribunal
2008-2009
11.81 2012-13 to CGST & Central
June 2017 Excise
Commissionerate
Belapur
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Amount* Forum where the
Name of the Statute Nature of dues (Rs. in Period . . \
Crore) dispute is pending
The Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 278.49 | October 2012 | CGST & Central
to June 2017 | Excise
Commissionerate
Belapur
22943 | April2016to | CGST & Central
June 2017 Excise
Commissionerate
Belapur
Madhya Pradesh Luxury, Entertainment 68.35 | 2011-2012to | High Court
Entertainment, Merriment, Tax 2015-16
Advertising Act, 2011
Meghalaya (Mobile phone | Cess 0.59 2002-2003 High Court
connection cess) Act, 2002

*Net of amounts paid under protest.

According to information and explanation given to us and representation given by the
management, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(a)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company

has defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings and interest thereon from banks &
financial institutions, which were not paid as at Balance Sheet date. The lender wise details of
principal and interest are as nnder:

Period Period
Sr ARIOE Amount (Maximum (Maximum
i Lenders’ Name (Rs in Crore} | (Rsin Crore)
No. . Days) Days)
Borrowings Interest :
Borrowings Interest
1 Bank of India 46,00 0.61 2,923 2,922
2 Canara Bank 50.40 - 2,832 =
3 | Central Bank of 18.40 0.22 2,923 2,923
India
Corporation Bank
4 (merged with Union 13.80 0.16 2,923 2,922
Bank of India)
5 | China Development 863.67 26.70 2,759 2,945
Bank
g |[{Export Import Bank 215.92 6.67 2,759 2,945
of China
7 IDBI Bank 276.00 3.78 2,923 2,922
R IDBI Bank 54.92 - 2,936 -
g | Indian Overseas 18.40 0.22 2,923 2,922
Bank
Oriental Bank of
L0 Commerce (merged e 0.22
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Period Period
Sr Amount Amount (Maxi (Maximum
: Lenders' Name | (Rsin Crore) | (Rs in Crore) IR aximu
No. : Days) Days}
Borrowings Interest :
Borrowings Interest
with Punjab National
Bank)
1 Punjab National 187.60 i 2.948 i
Bank
12 | State Bank of India 115.00 1.76 2,923 2,922
Syndicate Bank
13 | {(merged with Canara 36.80 0.44 2,923 2,922
Bank)
14 | Union Bank of India 21.96 0.24 2,923 2,922
15 | HSBC-France 261.47 4.46 2,867 2,867
Vishvakarma
16 | Equipment Finance 118.00 - 1,947 -
Limited
17 Reliance
Communications *
Limited ( Preference > SOSH0 760 760
Shares )
Total 2,357.27 450.48

(Refer Note No. 2.10.03 of the financial statements)

(b)

(©)

C))

Apart from above outstanding of interest mentioned above, the Company has not provided
interest of Rs, 21,757 lakh and Rs. 1,59,684 lakh for the year ended and up to March 31, 2025
respectively and therefore it has not been disclosed above.

*Further, the Company has not provided premium payable on maturity of preference shares
of Rs. 40,500 lakh as at March 31, 2025 and Rs. 40,500 lakh as at March 31, 2024,

Installments amounting to Rs. 1,78,302 lakh payable to Department of Telecommunications
(DOT) as on Match 31, 2025 for spectrum acquired on deferred payment basis, has not been
paid. (Refer note 2.06.01 of the financial statements).

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the audit
procedures, we report that the Company has been declared willful defaulter by certain
lenders. Further, the Company has also received show cause notice from certain banks as to
why the Company should not be declared willful defaulter. Furthermore, SBI's willful
identification committee has passed an order for inclusion of the Company’s name and its
director/guarantors in credit information companies list of willful defaulters (refer note
2,23(viii)).

In our opinion and information and explanation given to us and based on the examination of
records of the Company, the Company has not raised term loans from any lender during the
year and hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by
us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that
no funds raised on short term basis have been used for long-term purposes.

: Continuation shest,
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In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Hence, the reporting requirements
under clause 3(ix)(e) and (f) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) and hence the provision of clause 3(x)a) of the order is not applicable to the
Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company
during the year has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

Based on the audit procedures performed by us and according to the information and
explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year. Also refer Note no. 2.23 (viii) of the financial statements.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12}
of section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in form ADT-4 as prescribed under
rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company
during the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations givento us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable. The details of such related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date, for the period
under audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, clause (xv) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(b) On the basis of examination of records and according to the information and explanation given

to us by the Management, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or
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Housing Finance activities. Hence the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

(¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of
India.

(d) As represented by the management, the Group does not have any Core Investment Company
as part of the Group as per the definition of Group contained in the Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

(xvii) Based on the examination of records, the Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 1,90,476
lakh in the financial year 2024-25 and Rs. 1,82,999 lakh in immediately preceding financial
year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly,

reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, indicate that material uncertainty exists that may cast a
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) Based on the examination of records of the Company and information and explanations given
to us, due to losses incurred, the conditions and requirements of section 135 of the act is not
applicable to the Company. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

For Pathak H. D. & Associates LLLP
Chartered Accountants

AV
Tl

Jigar T. Shah

Partner

Membership No.161851

UDIN: 25161851BMOGBH1526

Date: May 27, 2025
Place: Mumbali

Continuation sheet...
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‘Annexure B’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with respect to financial statement under Clause (i)
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (*‘the Act’®)

(Referred to in paragraph 2¢h) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date to the members of Reliance Telecom Limited for the year ended March 31,
2023)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Reliance
Telecom Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (*Guidance Note”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderty and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safegnarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards en
Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our qualified opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to
financial statements.

Continuation sheet..
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasomable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of centrols,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
pelicies or procedures may deteriorate.

Basis of Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following
material weaknesses has been identified in the operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements as at March 31, 2025:

i.  The Company’s internal process with regard to confirmation and reconciliation of Balances of
trade receivable, trade payables & other liabilities and loan & advances resulting the Company
not providing for adjustments, which are required to be made to the carrying values of such
assets and liabilities. (Read with Note no. 2.21).

ii.  In respect of delays in payment of certain statutory dues and filing of certain statutory returns
during the year with the respective authorities.

iii.  The Company’s internal financial control with regard to the compliance with the applicable
Indian Accounting Standards and evaluation of carrying values of assets and liabilities and other
matters, as fully explained in basis for qualified opinion paragraph of our main report, resulting
in the Company not providing for adjustments, which are required to be made, to the financial
statements.

A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control
over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
Company's financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

H_C‘(_J_ntinuation sheet...



Pathak H.D. ssociatesLip

rtered Accountants

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except
for the effects / possible effects of the material weaknesses described above under Basis of Qualified
Opinion paragraph on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has, in
all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and
such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2025, based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note,

We have considered material weakness identified and reported above in determining the nature,
timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2025 and these material weaknesses has affected our opinion on the said
financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025 (our audit report dated May
27, 2025) which we have expressed a qualified opinion on these financial statements of the Company.

For Pathak H. D. & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No, 107783W/W 100593

e
Jigar T. Shah
Partner

Membership No.161851
UDIN: 25161851BMOGBH1526

Date: May 27, 2025
Place: Mumbai

Continuation sheet. .



Reliance Telecom Limited

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

( T in lakh)
Particulars Notes el As at
) S March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Non Current Assets
(a) Praperty, Plant and Equipment 2.01 2 2
{b) Income Tax Assets (net) 2.02 845 847 845 847
Current Assets
{a) Financial Assets
(i} Trade Receivables 2.03 4,470 4,470
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 2.04 8 298
{b) Other Current Assets 2.05 34,504 34,308
(c) Assets Held for Sale 2.06 3,40,268 3,79,250 3,40,268 3,79,344
Total Assets 3,80,097 3,80,191
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a} Equity Share Capital 2,07 8,500 8,500
(b) Cther Equity 2.08 (1528,483) (15,19,983) (13,99,824) (13,91,324)
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Provisions 2.09 - 2
Current Liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
(i} Borrowings 210 7,268,764 7,286,085
(i) Trade Payables 2.1
Micre and Small Enterprises 1,347 1,347
Creditors other than Micro and Small
Enterprises 55,471 55,442
(iiiy Other Financial Liabilities 212 6,72,243 584,425
(k) Other Current Liabilities 2.13 3,782 3,784
{c) Provisions 214 1 1
{d) Liabilities directly related to Assets Held for
Sale 2.06 440,472 19,00,080 400,429 17,71,513
Total Equity and Liabilities W _373667
Material Accounting Policies 1
Notes on Accounts 2




Reliance Telecom Limited

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date.

For Pathak H.D. & Associates LLP For Reliance Telecom Limited
Firm Regn No. 107783W/M100593
Chartered Accountants %’Vn :
o — = - —_— y
WS TR P
11% & : Anish Niranjan Nahavaty
/: ;f i Resolution Professional

Jigar T. Shah \Q.}f_‘-__ N/
Partner "' g,lé
Membership No. 161851 i

Payal H Shah

Director

DIN 09284328

¢
Pt

Mahesh Mungekar
Director
DIN 00778339

4

Sanjay K Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer

e

Jigar Joshi
Place : Mumbai Company Secretary & Manager
Dated : May 27, 2025 ABT832
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Reliance Telecom Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

Particulars

(a)
(b)
{c)

VI
()
(b)
VI

Vil

INCOME

Revenue from Operations
Other Income

Total Income ((a) +(b})

EXPENSES

Access Charges, License Fees and Network
Expenses

Employee Benefits Expenses
Finance Costs

Depreciation and Amortisation
¥ 7,857 ( Previous yearX 7 657)
General Administration Expenses

Total Expenses ((a) to (e))

Profit /{Loss) before Exceptional items and
Tax (1{c)- lI{f})

Exceptional ltems

Provision for Liability on account of License and
Spectrum Fees

Profit { Loss before Tax {llI- IV)
Tax Expense:

- Current Tax

- Deferred Tax Charge/ (Credit)
Profit /Loss after Tax (V- V1)
Other Comprehensive Income

Remeasurement Gain/ {Loss) of the net defined
employee benefit (Net of Tax)

{ Previous year ¥ (1,453 ))

Total other comprehensive income, net of tax

Total Comprehensive Income / (Loss) for the
yaar (VI + VIII)

Earnings per Share of T 10 each fully paid up
- Before exceptional items (Basic and Diluted) (3)
- After exceptional items (Basic and Diluted) (%)

Material Accounting Policies
Notes oh Accounts

{Tin lakh)

For the year ended

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Notes March 31, 2025
2.15 24
24
2.16 599
217 12
2.18 41,360
2.01 .
2.19 931
42,902
(42,878)
2.25 85,786
(1,28,664)
{1,28,664)
5
5
(1,28,659)
2.28
(50.44)
(151.37)
1
2

'/l
\Qf
e
NS,

.

i(( muwEA! )

.:\.x 0\ Y

— w
ey

1M
11

599

58
37,641

208
39,206
{39,195)

80,314
(1,19,509)

{1,12,509)

(1,18,509)

(48.11)
(140.60)
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Reliance Telecom Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date.

For Pathak H.D. & Assoclates LLP
Firm Regn No. 107783W/W100593

Chartered Accountants

TR

Jigar T. Shah
Partner
Membership No. 161851

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 27, 2025

For Reliance Telecom Limited

% 7] M’%@
Anishﬁranjan Nanavaty
Resolution Professional

Bl

Payal H Shah
Director
DIN C9284328

P IA
\§ .

Mahesh Mungekar
Director
DIN 00778339

174

Agarwal
Chref Financial Officer

V"'u

Jigar Joshi
Company Secretary & Manager
AB7632



Reliance Telecom Limited

Statements of Change in Equity as at March 31, 2025

{a) Equity Share Capital {(Refer Note 2.07) ( ¥ in lakh)
. As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 8,500 8,500
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors " =
Restated balance at the beginning of the year 8,500 8,500
Change in Equity Share Capital during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 8,500 8,500
(b) Other Equity (Refer Note 2,08) ( T in lakh)
Reserves and Surplus
Particulars PrefsenceShare oy N Total
Redemption E Comprehensive
arnings
Reserve Income
Balance as at April 1, 2024 20,000 (14,19,809) (15) (13,99,824)
Surplus/ (Deficit) of Statement of Profit and Loss - {1,28,664) - (1,28,664)
Other Comprehensive lncome ¥ (1,453 ) # - 5 5
Balance as at March 31, 2025 20,000 (15,48,473) (10} (15,28,483)
Balance as at April 1, 2023 20,000 {13,00,300) (15) (12,80,3158)
Surplus/ (Deficit) of Statement of Profit and Loss - (1,.19,509) - {1,19,509)
QOther Comprehensive Income - = = s
Balance as at March 31, 2024 20,000 (14,19,809) (15) (13,99,824)
Material Accounting Policies 1
Notes on Accounts 2

Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date.

For Pathak H.D. & Associates LLP For Reliance Tefecom Limited
Firm Regn No. 107783WAN 100593

Chartered Accountanis ﬁ |
TASS Ani N%JL jan N
jﬂéfi/ 9. EASHN nish Niranjan Nanavaty
._-""/ = vy

Resolution Professional

tyals

Jigar T. Shah
Partner Payal H Shah
Membership No. 161851 Director

DIN 09284328

eAA
V=

Mahesh Mungekar
Director

DIN 00 78339/

Sanjay W Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer

v Jigar Joshi
Place : Mumbai ~—¢/  Company Secretary & Manager
Dated : May 27, 2025 == AB7632



Reliance Telecom Limited

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

{ T in lakh)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
- March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
A CASH FLCW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit /{Loss) before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss (1,28,664) {1,19,509)
Adjusted far:
Depreciation and Amortisation
% 7,657 { Previous year ¥ 7,657) R -
Effect of change in Foreign Exchange Rate {net) 445 260
Finance Costs 41 380 37,641
Interest Income (11) {(11)
41,794 37,890
Operating Prefit / {Logs) before Working Capital Changes (86,870) (81,618)
Adjusted for;
Receivables and Other Advances {180) (187}
Trade Payables and Other Liabilities §6,096 80,619
85,916 80,432
Cash Generated from Operations activities {954) {1,187)
Tax Refund - 2
Tax Paid e S — )} !
Net Cash from/ {Used in) Operating Activities (954) (1,186}
B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Deletion of Property, Plant and Equipments, Capital Work in - 9
Progress and Assets held for Sale
Net Cash from/ (Used in) Investing Activities - 9
C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net Proceeds from / (Repayment of} Short term Borrowings 679 -
Proceeds from Non-Current Borrowings - -
Repayment of Non-Current Borrowirngs - -
Finance Costs (15) {150}
Net Cash from/ (Used in} Financing Activities 664 {150]
Net Increasef (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (230) (1,327)
Cpening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents {23,854) (22,627)
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents (24,244) (23,954)

Note:
{1) Figures in brackets indicate cash outflow.
{2) Cash and Cash Equivalents includes cheques on hand, remittances-in-transit and bank balance,

(3) Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method set out in Indian Accounting Standard
(ind AS) 7. "Statement of Cash Flows",

(4} Breakup of Cash and Cash Equivalents: (T in lakh)
Particulars - ' As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(i) Cash and cash equivalent 8 298
(il Less: Bank overdraft (24,252) (24,252)
{iii) Cash and cash equivalent {net) as perInd AS 7 (24,244) (23,954}
P——— .
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Reliance Telecom Limited

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

Material Accounting Policies
Notes on Accounts

Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date,

For Pathak H.D. & Associates LLP
Firm Regn No. 107783W/W100583

Chartered Accountants

T

Jigar T. Shah
Partner
Membership No. 161851

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 27, 2025
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For Reliance Telecom Limited

%w/

Anish Niranjan Nanavaty
Resclution Professional

Lo
Payal H Shah

Director
DIN 08284328

A~

Mahesh Mungekar
Director
DIN 00778339

9%

Sanjay K Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer

M/.
;

Jigar Joshi

Company Secretary & Manager
A57632




Reliance Telecom Limited

Notes on Accounts to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note: 1

General Information and Matertal Accounting Policies

1.1

1.01

General Information

Reliance Telecom Limited ("RTL" or “the Company” or "Corporate Debtor”), a subsidiary of Reliance
Communications Limited ("RCOM" or " the Holding Company" }. The Company is registered under the
Companies Act, 1956, having Registered Office at H Block, 1st Floor, Dhirubhai Ambani Knowledge City,
Navi Mumbai 400710. RTL was providing Telecemmunication services in eight telecom service areas
namely: Assam, Bihar, Himachal Pradesh, Kolkata, Madhya Pradesh, North East, Orissa and West
Bengal through GSM Technology. The Company, during the earlier year, had discontinued Wireless
business,

Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process ("CIRP") has been initiated in case of the Company under the
Provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 {the Code). Pursuant to the order, the
management of affairs of the Company and powers of board of directors of the Company stands vested
with the Resclution Professional ("RP") appointed by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal
(NCLT).

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The Financial Statements are prepared under historical cest convention except for assets, specified
hereunder, which are measured at fair value, in accordance with the generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) in India and in compliance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified
under Section 133 the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") except matters specified in Note 2.06, 2.18.01,
2.21, 2.25 and 2.26 read with relevant rules of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules
2015, the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules 2016 and other provisions of
the Act to the extent notified and applicable, as well as applicable guidance note and proncuncements of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl).

All assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating
cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule Il to the Act. Based on the nature of the services and their
realization in cash & cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve
manths for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

1.02 Functional Currency and Presentation Currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ( "Rupees” or "T") which is also the functional
currency of the Company. All amounts are rounded off to the lakh, unless stated otherwise.

1.03 Property, Plant and Equipment

(iy Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) are stated at cost net of Input credits/ Modvat/ Cenvat less
accumulated depreciation, amortisation and impairment loss, if any. Subsequent expenditure is
capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will
flow to the Company.

(iiy Cost of an item of PPE comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non refundable
purchase taxes after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing
the item to its working condition for its intended use and present value of estimated costs of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.
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(iii)

(v)

(vi)

As per Para 46A of Accounting Standard 11, ‘“The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates',
related to acquisition of depreciable assets pursuant to the notifications dated December 29, 2011
and August 9, 2012 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), under the Companies
(Accounting Standard) (Second Amendment) Rules 2011, the cost of depreciable capital assets
includes foreign exchange differences arising on translation of long term foreign currency monetary
items as at the balance sheet date in so far as they relate to the acquisition of such assets is

capitalised and subsequently on adoption of Indian Accounting Standard also the same is allowed
for the transactions recorded upto March 31, 2016.

Depreciation is provided on Straight Line Method based on useful life of the assets prescribed in
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 except in case of the following assets where useful life is
different than those that are prescribed in Schedule I, considered based on technical evaluation.

(a) Telecom Electronic Equipments - 20 years

(b) Furniture, Fixtures and Office Equipments - 5, 10 years

(c) Vehicles - § years

(d) Leasehold improvements - Shorter of the remaining lease term or useful life.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically at each reporting
date.

{vii) Depreciation on all the assets capitalised pursuant to para 46A of AS 11 is provided over the

remaining useful life of the depreciable capital asset.

(viii) Depreciation on additions is calcuiated pro rata from the following month of addition.

(ix)

Expenses incurred relating to project, prior to commencement of commercial operations, are
considered as project development expenditure and shown under Capital Work in Progress.

1.04 Intangible Assets

(D
(ii)
(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Intangible Assets are stated at cost as applicable less accumulated amortisation/ impairment, if any.

Intangible assets acquired are measured on initial recognition at cost. Cost includes all direct costs
relating to acquisition of Intangible assets and borrowing cost relating to qualifying assets.
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Intangible assets, namely Telecom Licenses are amortised, over the period of Licenses on Straight
Line Methed (SLM) . Software assets are amartized from the date of acquisition or commencement
of commercial services, whichever is later.

There are no intangible assets assessed with indefinite useful tife. The life of amortisation of the
intangible assets are as follows:

(a) Telecom Licenses - 20 years
(b) Software - & years

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically at each reporting
date.
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1.05 Non-current Assets Held for Sale

Non-current assets are classified as the Asseis Held for Sale when their carrying amount is to be
recovered principally through a sale transaction. Non-current assets classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their carrying amount and/ or fair value less costs to sell. This condition is
regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset is available for immediate sale in its
present condition, subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sale of such assets and sale is
expected to be concluded within twelve months from the date of such classification.

Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately in the balance sheet. Non-
current assets are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale.

Loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write down of such non current assets to fair value less
costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increase in fair value less costs to sell an asset but
not in excess of any cumulative loss previously recognised.

If the criteria for assets held for sale are no longer met, it ceases to be classified as held for sale and are
measured at the lower of (i) its carrying amount before the asset was classified as held for sale, adjusted
for any depreciation or any amortisation that would have been recognised had that asset not been
classified as held for sale, and (ii) its recoverable amount at the date when such assets ceases to be
classified as held for sale.

1.08 Impairment of Non Financial Assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they may be impaired. Other assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable
value. An impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which an asset
is identified as impaired. The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting period is increased /
reversed where there has been change in the estimate of recoverable value. The recoverable value is
higher of the assets net selling price and value in use.

1.07 Inventories of Stores, Spares and Communication Devices

Inventories of stores, spares and communication devices are accounted for at costs and all other costs
incurred in bringing the inventory to their present location and condition, determined on weighted average
basis or net realizable value, whichever is less. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

1.08 Employee Benefits

Shortsterm employee benefits

Alt employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-
term employee benefits. These benefits include compensated absences such as paid annual leave and
sickness leave. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised as an expense during the year.

Long-term employee benefits

() Defined contribution plan
The Company's contribution towards Employees’ Superannuation Plan is recognised as an expense
during the peried in which it accrues,
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(i)

(iii)

Defined benefit plans
Provident Fund

The Company's contribution towards provident fund is recognised as an expense during the period
in which it accrues,

Gratuity Plan

The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company's net obligation in
respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their services in the current and prior periods; that benefit is
discounted to determine its present value, mortality rate and the fair value of any plan assets is
deducted. Mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality table in India.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial
valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount
rates used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based
on the market yields on Government Securities as at the Balance Sheet date.

Remeasurements which comprise actuarial gain and losses, the return of plan assets (excluding
interesty and the effect of assets ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income.

Other Long term employment benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the
period in which the employee renders the related services are recognised as a liability at the present
value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date, determined based on actuarial
valuation using Projected Unit Credit Method. The discount rates used for determining the present
value of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based on the market yields on Government
Securities as at the balance sheet date.

Remeasurements gain and losses is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in
which they arise.

1.09 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part
of the cost of such assets upto the commencement of commercial operations. A qualifying asset is one
that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for intended use. Other borrowing costs are
recognised as expense in the period in which they are incurred.

1.10 Foreign Currency Transactions

{0)
(i)
(i)

(iv)

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing at the
time of the transaction.
Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year end are restated at year end rates.

Non monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost. (i.e. translated using the exchange rates at
the time of initial transactions).

Exchange difference on monetary items are recegnised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the
period in which they arise except for;

(a) Exchange difference on foreign currency borrowings relating to depreciable capital asset are
included in cost of assets which are regarded as an adjustment to interest cost.
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(b} Exchange difference on foreign currency transactions, on which receipt and/ or payments are not
planned, initially recognised in other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit
and loss on repayment of the monetary items,

(v) Accounting of transactions that include the receipt or payment of advance consideration in a foreign
currency the date of transaction, for the purpose of determining the exchange rate, is the date of
initial recognition of the non monetary prepayment asset or deferred income lability. If there are
multiple payments or receipts in advance, a date of transaction is established for each payment or
receipt.

(vi) Any Gain/ Loss arising out of marking a class of derivative contracts to market price is recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.
1.11 Revenue Recognition and Receivables

(i) Revenue is recognised when control over goods or services is transferred to a customer, which
under current GAAP is based on the transfer of risks and rewards. A customer obtains control when
he has the ability to direct the use of and obtain the benefits from the good or service, there is
transfer of title, supplier has right to payment etc. with the transfer of risk and rewards now being
one of the many factors to be considered within the overall concept of control.

(i The Company determines whether revenue should be recognised ‘over time’ or ‘at a point in time’.

As a result, it is required to determine whether control is transferred over time. If not, only then
revenue be recognised at a point in time, or else over time. The Company also determines if there
are multiple distinct promises in a contract or a single performance obligation (PO). These promises
may be explicit, implicit or based on past customary business practices. The consideration gets
allocated to multiple POs and revenue recognised when control over those distinct goods or services
is transferred.
The entities may agree tc provide goods or setvices for consideration that varies upon certain future
events which may or may not occur, This is variable consideration, a wide term and includes all
types of negative and positive adjustments to the revenue. This could result in earlier recognition of
revenue compared to current practice — especially impacting industries where revenue is presently
not recorded until all contingencies are resolved. Further, the entities will have to adjust the
transaction price for the time value of money. Where the collections from customers are deferred
the revenue will be lower than the contract price, and in case of advance collections, the effect will
be opposite resulting in revenue exceeding the contract price with the difference accounted as a
finance expense.

(i} Interestincome is recognised on time proportion basis.
1.12 Taxes on Income and Deferred Tax

Income Tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss except
to the extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or other
comprehensive income.

Provision for income tax is made on the basis of taxable income for the year at current rates. Tax
expense comprises of Current Tax and Deferred Tax at the applicable enacted or substantively enacted
rates. Current tax represents amount of income Tax payable / recoverable in respect of the taxable
incomefloss for the reporting period. Deferred tax represents the effect of temporary difference between
carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statement and the corresponding tax base used
in computation of taxable income. Deferred Tax Liabilities are generally accounted for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carried
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that is probable and that taxable profit
will be available against which such deductible temporary differences can be utilised. MAT credit is
recognised as an asset only if there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay: nermal income tax
during the specified period. ]
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1.13 Asset Retirement Obligation (ARO),Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when there is a
present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources.
Provisions are determined by discounting expected future cash flows at the pre tax rate that reflects
current market assumptions of time value of money and risk specific to the liability. A disclosure for a
contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but
probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure
is made. Provisions and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimates.

Asset Retirement Obligation (ARO) relates to the removal of equipments when they will be retired from
its active use. Provision is recognised based on the best estimate, of the management, of the eventual
costs (net of recovery), using discounted cash flow, that relates to such obligation and is adjusted to the
cost of such assets. Estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted as
appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are added to or
deducted from the cost of the asset.

Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements of the Company,
1.14 Earnings per Share

In determining Earnings per Share, the Company considers the net profit or loss after tax and includes
the post tax effect of any exceptional item. Number of shares used in computing basic earnings per
share is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period. Dilutive earnings per
share is computed and disclosed after adjusting effect of all dilutive potential equity shares, if any except
when results will be anti-dilutive. Dilutive potential Equity Shares are deemed converted as of the
beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date.

1.15 Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial

liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments also include derivative contracts such

as foreign currency foreign exchange forward contracts,

Financial Assets

(i Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value including transacticn costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. In the case of financial assets recorded at fair
value through Profit and Loss, the transaction cost is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(i) Subsequent measurement

Subsequent measurement of the Financial Assets depends on the Company’s business model for
managing the asset and cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Company classifies its financial assets:
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Financial Assets measured at amortised cost;
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) Asset is held within a business model, whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. After initial measurement, such
financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of EIR. EIR amortisation is included in finance income in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI):
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selfing financial assets, and

b} The contractual cash flows of the asset represent SPPI: Debt instrument is included within
FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value
movements are recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company
recogmzes interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to Profit and Loss. Interest earned whilst holding
FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Financial Assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):

A ‘debt instrument’, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as
FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt
instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such
election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Equity investments :

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which
are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the company
decides to classify the same either as at FVOCI or FVTPL. The Company makes such election on
an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is
irrevocable.

If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value changes on
the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts
from OCI to profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the profit and loss.

Also, Company has elected to apply the exemption available under Ind AS 101 to continue the
carrying value for its investments in subsidiaries and associates as recognised in the financial
statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAF‘ as at the date

of transition”.
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Derecognition of Financial Assets

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when: (1) The rights o receive cash flows from the asset
have expired, or (IlThe Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or
has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the Expected Credit Loss associated with its
assets carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in the credit risk. As a practical expedient, the Company uses a
provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables, as
permitted by Ind AS 109. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over
the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward looking
estimates are analysed.

Financial Liabilities

(i

(ii)

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, in the case of loans, borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. Financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liahilities depends on their classification, as described herein:
Financial liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss: Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading,
if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in profit or loss,

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost: After initial recognition, interest bearing loans
and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using EIR method. Gains and losses
are recognised in Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through EIR
amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of EIR. EIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.




Reliance Telecom Limited

Notes on Accounts to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

1.16 Use of Estimates

The preparation and presentation of Financial Statements requires estimates and assumptions to be
made that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities on
the date of the Financial Statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Difference between the actual results and estimates is recognised in the pericd in which
the results are known/ materialised. Estimates and underlying assets are reviewed on periodical basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will
seldom equal the actual resuits. The management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the
accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning
out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and
judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each
affected line item in the financial statements

Critical estimates and judgements

The Company has based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the
Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements pertains to useful life of property, plant and
equipment {(Note 2.01}, current tax expense and payable, recognition of deferred tax assets for carried
forward tax losses, impairment of trade receivables, other current assets (Note 2.02, 2.03 and 2.05),
Assets Held for Sale { Note 2.06) and measurement of defined benefit obligation (Note 2.31). Estimates
and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are
helieved to be reasonable under the circumstances.

(i} Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment including intangible asset: The residual values, useful
lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

(i) Taxes : The Company provides for fax considering the applicable tax regulations and based on
probable estimates.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns giving due considerations to
tax laws and establishes provisions in the event if required as a result of differing interpretation or
due to retrospective amendments, if any.

The recognition of deferred tax assets is based on availability of sufficient taxable profits in the
Company against which such assets can be utilized.

(i) Fair value measurement and valuation process: The Company measured financial assets and
liabilities, if any, at fair value for financial reporting purposes.

{(iv) Trade receivables and Other financial assets: The Company follows a 'simplified approach’ (i.e.
based on lifetime Expected Credit Loss {(“ECL")) for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
Trade receivables. For the purpose of measuring lifetime ECL allowance for trade receivables, the
Company estimates irrecoverable amounts based on the ageing of the receivable balances and
historical experience. Further, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogeneous
groups and assessed for impairment collectively. Individual trade recewables are written off when
management deems them not to be collectible.
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(v) Defined benefit plans {(gratuity benefits) : The Company’s obligation on account of gratuity and
compensated absences is determined based on actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include
the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, these liabilities are highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter subject to frequent changes is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate
discount rate, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies
consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables in India. Those mortality tables tend
to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity
increases are hased on expected future inflation rates.

(vi) Non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment, whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).

(vii) Determination of net realisable value of Assets Held for Sale and related liabilities.

(vii) Provisions and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect
the current best estimates.

(ix) The Company has provided liability against License & Spectrum Fee dues along with interest and
penalty, for the demands raised by DoT considering Non-Telecom income till FY 2014-15 and for
the balance years, for which demand have not been raised by DoT, the company has computed
estimated liability on Non-Telecom revenue from FY 2015-16 onwards along with interest and
penalty thereof.

1.17 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise of cash on hand, demand deposits with
Banks, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three maonths or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in

1.18 Recent Pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA"} notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. MCA has notified Ind
AS — 117 Insurance Contracts and amendments to Ind AS 116 — Leases, relating to sale and leaseback
transactions, applicable to the Company w.e.f. April 1, 2024. The Company has reviewed the new
pronouncements and based on its evaluation has determined that it does not have any significant impact
in its financial statements.
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Note: 2.01
Property, Plant and Equipment ) (Tin lakh)

Particulars Buildings

Gross carrying value

As at April 1, 2023 4
Additions .
Deductions 5

As at March 31, 2024 4
Additions -
Deductions “

As at March 31, 20256 4

Accumulated Depreciation

As at April 1, 2023 2
Depreciation for the year ¥ 7,657 -
Deductions z

As at March 31, 2024 2
Depreciation for the year ¥ 7,657 .
Deductions -

As at March 31, 2025 2

Net Carrying Value
As at March 31, 2024 2
As at March 31, 2025 2

Notes:
2.01.01 Building includes cost of shares in Co-operative Society T 250 (Previous year ¥ 250).
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Note: 2.02
(a) Income Tax Assets (net) (Refer Note 2.21) (Zin lakh)
. ) o As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Advance Income Tax and Tax Deducted at source 845 845
(net of provision for tax)
845 845
(b) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) (Tin lakh)
Particulars As at As at__ For the year ended March 31,
Warch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 - 2025 2024
{a} Amount recognised in Financial Statement
(i) Deferred Tax Assets
Relating to Carried forward 2,48 887 2,47,092 1,795 22,221
losses and unabsorbed
depreciation
Disallowances under Income 7,666 7,578 88 101
Tax Act, 1961
Relating to temporary (28,181) (13,475) (14,706) 12,515
difference on depreciation/
amortisation and Impairment
of Assets
2,28,372 241,195 (12,823) 34,837
(ii) Deferred Tax Liabilities e = s s
“(';f Ei‘;fe"ed AKESSOLS 2,28,372 241,195 (12,823) 34,837
Deferred Tax Assets ] _
Nil Nil Nil Nil

recognised/ restricted

Significant management judgement is considered in determining provision for income tax, deferred tax
assets and liabilities and recoverability of deferred tax assets. The recoverability of deferred tax assets
is based on estimate of the taxable income for the period over which deferred tax assets will be

recovered.

The Company has unabsorbed business losses/depreciation, which according to the management will
be used to setoff taxable profit arising in subsequent years from operation and/or sale of assets of the
Company. However, Deferred Tax Assets have been restricted to T Nil ( Previous year T Nil) due to
non existence of reascnable certainty. Year wise expiry of total Losses are as under:

e —
e SO

N
N
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Reliance Telecom Limited

Notes on Accounts to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Sr.  Year of Expiry

i. Financial Year 2025-26

ii. Financial Year 2026-27

iii. Financial Year 2027-28

iv. Financial Year 2028-29

v. Financial Year 2029-30

vi. Financial Year 2030-31

vii. Financial Year 2031-32

viii. Financial Year 2032-33

ix. Unabsorbed Depreciation for unlimited pericd
(b} Amounts recognised in profit and loss

Amount of Loss (T in lakh)

68,406
54,268
53,256
51,911
55,271
58,568
62,169
65,925
3,27,943
(Tin lakh)

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025

For the vear ended
March 31, 2024

Current income tax _ -
Deferred income tax liabitity / (asset), net -

Tax expense for the year -

(c) Amounts recognised in Other

Comprehensive Income Nil
(d) Reconciliation of Tax Expenses
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax {1,28,664)
Applicable Tax Rate 31.20%
Computed Tax Expenses (l) (40,143)
Addf {Less):
DTA not recognised on account of
Temporary differences 13,378
Provision for Impairment disallowed/ Others 28,765
not allowed under Income Tax Act, 1961
Subtotal {Il) 40,143

Income Tax Expenses charge/ (credit) to -
Statement of Profit and Loss (I+11)

Nil

(1,19,509)
31.20%
(37,287)

12,229
25,058

37,287




Rellance Telecom Limited

Notes on Accounts to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note: 2.03

Trade Receivables_( Refgr Note 2.21 and 2.27 2)

Particulars

Unsecured

Considered good

Which have significant increase in credit risk

{Tin lakh)

As at
~ March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

4,470

4,470
Credit impaired 19,965 19 965
Less: Allowance for credit impaired 19,965 190 965
4,470 4470
2.03.01
Ageing Trade Receivables from the due date of payment as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024
o - - {Tin lakh)
Particulars Less then 6 6 months- 1-2years 2-3years More than Total
months 1 year 3 years
Undisputed Trade o
Receivables-Which have - = = 5 4,470 4,470
significant increase in credit {-) {-) {-) () (4,470) {4,470)
risk
Undisputed Trade - - - . 19.965 19,965
Receivables-Credit impaired {-) =) -} {-) (19,965} (19,965)
< . - - 24,435 24,435
Total-A ' ’
{-) ) ) -} (24,435) (24,435)
Less: Allowance for credit - - - - 19,965 19,965
impaired - B - S ) Q] ) (19.98%)  {19,965)
- - - - 4,470 4,470
Total{A-B) e 3 0 (0 (4470)  (4,470)
Note: 2.04
Cash and Cash Equivalents - {Tin lakh)
Particulars ARgt e
- March 21, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance with Banks 8 208
8 298
Note: 2.05
Other Current Assets (Unsecured)” (T in lakh)
- As at As at

Particulars

a} Advances and Receivables

Considered good

Related Parties { Refer Note 2. 30 )

Others

b} Others
Deposits

Balance with GST Authorities etc.

Prepaid Expenses

* Refer Note 2.21

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

881 870
17,393 17,384
18,274 18,264

3,613 3,603
12,448 12,272

169 169

34,504

34308




Reliance Telecom Limited

Notes on Accounts to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note: 2.06
Assets Held for Sale

( Tin lakh)

Net Block
Reclassified

from PPE and

Additions/
Deletions

Assets Held for Sale

Particulars

March 31, 2025

Intangible
Particulars Assets
For the year For the year As at
ended ended March, 31
B March 3, B March 31,
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
Tangible
Plant and Machinery - - - 9 728 728
Capital Work in Progress - - - - 14 14
Subtotal - - - 9 742 742
Intangible
Telecom Licences - - - - 2,54212 2,54,212
Intangible Assets under Development-
Telecom Licences - i ) i 85,314 85,314
Subtotal - - - - 3,39,5626 3,39,526
Total - - - 9 3,40,268 3,40,268
Liabilities directly related to Assets Held for Sale - { T in lakh)
As at As at

March 31, 2024

Deferred Payment Liabilities relating
to Telecom Licences

Interest accrued on Spectrum

1,92,148
2,48,324

4,40,472

1,92,148

2,08,281
400,429

2.06.01 The assets pertaining to Wireless Business continued to be classified as assets held for sale
at the value ascertained as at March 31, 2018, along with liabilities and disclosed separately as
discontinued operations in line with Ind AS 105 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale & Discontinued
operations” . During the year, ¥ Nil (Previous year T Nil} have been impaired and represented as
exceptional items, On finalisation and implementation of debt resolution process through Hon'ble
NCLT, the Company will carry out a comprehensive impairment review of its tangible, intangible

assets and Assets held for sale. Refer Note 2.21.

W



Reliance Telecom Limited

Notes on Accounts to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

During the earlier years, Reliance Communications Limited (RCOM), being the Holding Company,
successfully bid under auction conducted for spectrum, by The Department of Telecommunications
(DeT), for and on behalf of the Company and won spectrum in 5 service areas at a total cost of ¥
258,457 lakh. RCOM has made upfront payment of ¥ 66,308 lakh on behalf of the Company, under
the deferred payment option on April 8, 2015 and balance ¥ 475,472 lakh {including interest), was
payable in 16 annual installment starting from Financial year 2018-19. The Installments of T 29,717
lakh each aggregating to ¥ 178,302 lakh, due on April 9, 2019 April 9, 2020, April @, 2021, April 9,
2022 , April 9, 2023 and April 8, 2024 are yet to he paid and balance installments not due as at March
31, 2025 is aggregating to ¥ 267,453 lakh including interest @10% per annum. Further, an installment
of ¥ 29,717 lakh due on April 9, 2025 is yet to be paid. Spectrum won in 3 service areas are yet to be
put to use and was reflected as Intangible assets under development.

In this regard it is pertinent to note that the dues pertaining to the spectrum (including entire deferred
payments) have been claimed by DoT vide letter dated May 20, 2020 and the same have been
admitted by the RP, and accordingly, the dues shall be dealt with in accordance with provisions of the
Code. In accordance with the aforesaid and admission of deferred spectrum instaliments as claims,
the Company has not paid the installments.

2.06.02 Refer note 2.10.01 for security in favour of lenders. Reliance Communications Limited
(RCOM), the Holding Company had, during the earlier years, allotted, 1,500, 11.25% Secured
Redeemable, Non Convertible Debentures {(NCDs} of the face walue of ¥ 10,000,000 each,
aggregating to T 150,000 lakh (current outstanding ¥ 75,000 lakh), and 3,000, 11.20% Secured
Redeemable, Non Convertible Debentures {NCDs) of the face wvalue of ¥ 10,000,000 each,
aggregating to T 300,000 lakh. The NCD's, alongwith 6.5% Senior Secured Notes (SCN's), Foreign
Currency Loans and Rupee Term Loans of T 2,542,400 lakh availed by Reliance Communications
Limited (RCOM), the Helding Company and Foreign Currency Loans of T 182,300 lakh availed by
Reliance Infratel Limited ( RITL) were secured by a first pari passu charge on the whole of the
movable plant and machinery of the Company including (without limitations) tower assets and optic
fibre cables, if any (whether attached or otherwise), capital work-in-progress (pertaining to movable
fixed assets) both present and future including all the rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and
demands in respect of all insurance contracts relating thereto of the Borrower Group; comprising of
the Company, RCOM, the Holding Company and its fellow subsidiaries namely RITL {Ceased to be
fellow subsidiary and part of Borrower Group since December 22, 2022 upon implementation of
approved resolution plan under CIRP) and Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited (RCIL) in
favour of the Security Trustee for the benefit of the NCD Holders and the Lenders of the said secured
loans. Further, Rupee Term Loan of ¥ 235,900 lakh availed by RCOM and T 110,900 lakh availed by
RITL have also been secured by second pari passu charge on the said assets. Rupee loans availed
by RCOM also includes ¥ 546,300 lakh secured by current assets, movable and immovable assets
including intangible, both present and future of the Borrower Group. Further, non fund based
outstanding of ¥ 24,600 lakh availed by the Company, ¥ 136,100 lakh availed by RCOM and < 400
lakh availed by RCIL have been secured by second pari passu charge on movable fixed assets of the
Borrower Group.

2.06.03 The Company, during the year ending March 31, 2018, had discontinued Wireless business
accordingly, Plant and Machinery, Capital Work-in-Progress and Intangible Assets under
Development- Telecom Licences were classified as "Assets held for Sale” hence cost comparision
and delay in project to original plan w.rt. Capital Work-in-Progress and Intangible Assets under
Development- Telecom Licences are not relevant.

e



Reliance Telecom Limited

Notes on Accounts to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
Note: 2.07

Equity Share Capital {Zin lakh)
. As at As at
Particulars - ~ March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Authorised
40 00 00 000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each 40,000 40,000
{40 00 00 000)
10 00 00 000 Preference Shares of T 10 each 10,000 10,000
{10 00 00 000)
50,000 50,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
8 50 00 000 Equity Shares of T 10 each fully paid up 8500 8 500
{8 50 00 000)
8,500 8,500
2.07.01 Equity Shares
{a) Equity Shares held by Promoters
Particulars ~ NoofShares % of Total % Change
Shares  during the
year
‘Reliance Communications Limited, Holding Company & 69 80 100 78.80% Nil
and its nominees (6 69 80 100} (78.80%) (Nil)
{b} Equity Shares held by Holding Company and its subsidiaries
Particulars No of Shares No of
Shares
Reliance Communications Limited, Holding Company 6 69 80 100 663 80 100
and its nominees
Reliance Realty Limited , a fellow subsidiary 18019 900 180 19 900
(c) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Particulars N ~ No of Shares % No of Shares %
Reliance Communications Limited 6 69 80 100 78.80% 669 80 100 78.80%
and its nominees
Reliance Realty Limited 18019 900 21.20% 18019900 21.20%

(d) The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10 per share. Each holder

of equity shares is entitied to one vote per share.

In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the
Company after the distribution of all the preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

PN



Reliance Telecom Limited
Notes on Accounts to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(e) Recenciliation of Shares outstanding at beginning and at the end of the reporting period.
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
No of Shares (Tin lakh) No of Shares X in lakh)

Equity Shares

At the beginning of the year 8 50 00 000 8,500 8 50 00 000 8,500
Add: Shares issued during the year - - - -
At the end of the year 8 50 00 000 8,500 8 50 00 D00 8,500
Note: 2.08
Other Equity B (T Inlakh)
. As at As at
Particul
e March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Preference Share Redemption Reserve

(i) Opening Balance 20,000 20,000

(i} Additions during the year - 20,000 - 20,000
Surplus /{Deficit) in retained earnings

(i) Opening Balance {14,19,809) (13,00,300)

(i} Add: Profit /( Loss) for the year (1,28,664) (1548,473) {1,19,509} (14,19,809)

Other Comprehensive Income
Remeasurement of defined employee benefit Plans

{iy Opening Balance {15) (15)
(i) Additions / Deletion during the year {net) 5 (10} - (15)
{15,28,483) (13,99,824)

Nature and Purpose of Reserve

Preference Share Redemption Reserve

Preference Share Redemption Reserve was created out of profits as required under the Act then applicable
which shall be utilised for the purpose of redemption of Preference Shares issued by the Company.

Note: 2.09

Provisions { Tin lakh)
. N - - As at As al

o — - _ March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Provision for Retirement Benefit {(Refer Note 2.22 & 2.31) - 2

: T




Reliance Telecom Limited

Notes on Accounts to the Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
Note: 2.10

Borrowings- Current (¥ inlakh)
. As at As at
CHIaE ) ~ March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Secured
From Banks (Refer Note 2.10.01)
Foreign Currency LLoans 1,34,108 1,34,106
Rupee Term Loan 3,680 3,680
From Related Parties (Refer Note 2.30)
Borrowings 679 -
Current Maturities of Long Term Debts
Secured
From Banks (Refer Note 2.10.01)
Rupee Term Loan 57,389 57,359
Unsecured
From Others
Rupee Loans 11,800 11,800
Unsecured
From Banks
Rupee Loans 24,252 24,252
From Others 1,20,000 1,20,000
From Related Parties (Refer Note 2.30)
Borrowings 2,35,588 2,35 588
Preference Shares (Refer Note 2.10.06 & 2.10.07) 1,39,270 1,39,270

7,26,764 7.26,085
2.10.01 Secured Loans

The Company, during earlier years, had availed Rupee Term Loan (Outstanding as on March 31, 2025 was
¥ 61,069 lakh) under consortium banking arrangement and Foreign Currency Loan (Secured Loans)
(Outstanding as on March 31,2025 was ¥ 134,106 lakh), which have been secured by way of first pari passu
charge on movable plant and machinery, including (without limitaticns) tower assets and optic fibre cables,
if any (whether attached or otherwise), capital work-in-progress (pertaining to movable fixed assets), both
present and future, including all rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands in respect of all
insurance contracts relating thereto of the Borrower Group; comprising of the Company, Reliance
Communications Limited (RCOM), the Holding Company and its fellow subsidiaries namely Reliance Infratel
Limited (RITL, ceased to be fellow subsidiary and part of Borrower Group since December 22, 2022 upon
implementation of approved resolution plan under CIRP) and Reliance Communications Infrastructure
Limited (RCIL} {Borrower Group) in favour of the Security Trustee for the benefit of the Lenders. The said
Secured Loans apart from the above securily, are also secured by pladge of equity shares of RCIL held by
RCOM and of the Company held by RCOM and Reliance Realty Limited {RRL} by execution of the Share
Pledge Agreement with the Share Pledge Security Trustee.

The Company, in favour of the Lenders of the Foreign Currency Loans, has also assigned eight Unified
Access Setvices (UAS) Licences, by execution of Tripartite Agreements with Department of
Telecommunications (DoT} and IDBI Bank, being the agent acting on behalf of the Lenders. The Company,
during the earlier year, migrated to Unified licence in 7 telecom circles. Assignment of Telecom Licenses of
the Company for the Rupee Term Loans is pending to be executed. The said Foreign Currency Loans are
also guaranteed by Holding Company.

Rupee Term loans are also secured by pledge of equity shares of RITL ( cancelled upon implementation of
RITL's approved resolution plan under CIRP on December 22, 2022) held by RCIL , current assets,
mevable and immovable assets including intangible, beth present and future of the Borrower Group and
Corporate Guarantee of the Borrower Group. During the earlier year, charge over the three immovable
assets of the Borrower Group was created. However, charge over balance immovable assets-of the
Borrower Group and Reliance Globalcom BV (RGBY) the security for Rupee Loan is pending to'be created.

]



Reliance Telecom Limited

Notes on Accounts te the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

During the earlier year, lenders have invoked guarantees provided by Borrower group for outstanding Rupee loan of
¥ 61,069 lakh availed by the Company, ¥ 595,000 lakh availed by RCOM and ¥ 48,500 lakh availed by RITL. Further,
the Company created first ranking exclusive charge (pari passu inter se the Lenders) over Designated Account with
future rights, title and interest therein, including all of its rights in respect of any amount standing to the credit of the
Designated Account and the debt represented by it, in favour of State Bank of India, the Convenor (for the benefit of
the Lenders) as continuing security.

During the year, the Company has taken interest hearing Secured Inter Corporate deposit T 679 lakh from RCOM,
the Company vet to create charge against the same.

2.10.02 Long term loans of ¥ 137,786 lakh has classified as Short term as the Company is under CIRP.
2.10.03 Delay/ Default in Repayment of Borrowings, interest and maturity premium

The Company has delayed/ defaulted in payment of dues to banks and other lenders. The lenderwise details are as
under:

Borrov; s I InteFe;tf_ N Borrowings InEERESt
9 Maturify Premium ° Maturity Premium
Default as at Defaultas at Default as at Default as at
Sr Name of lenders March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
Amount | Period | Amount | _Pefiod | Amount | Period |Amount| Period
[Zin [Maximum [ in lakh] [Maximum Kin [Maximum | [Fin [[Maximum
lakh] days] [ ~ | days] lakh] days] lakh] days]

1 |Central Bank of India 1,840 2,923 22 2,923 1,840 2,558 22 2,558

2 |Bank of India 4,600 2,923 61 2,922 4,600 2,558 G1 2,557

3 |Canara Bank 5,040 2832 - 5,040 2,467 - -

4 |Indian Overseas Bank 1,840 2,923 22 2,922 1,840 2,558 22 2,557
Oriental Bank of

5 |Commerce {merged with 1,393 2,740 22 2,922 1,393 2,375 22 2,557
Punjab National Bank}

6 |State Bank of India 11,500 2,923 176 2,922 11,500 2,558 176 2,557
1DBY Bank Ltd 27,600 2,923 378 2,922 27,600 2,558 378 2,557
Union Bank of India 2,198 2,923 24 2922 2,196 2,558 24 2,557
Corporation Bank {(merged

. . . 1,380 2,923 16 2,922 1,380 2,558 16 2,557

2 with Union Bank of India}

fou: yelicaisBank (menges 3,680 2,923 a4 | 2922|3680 2,558 a8 | 25857
with Canara Bank)* J 1 |

11 |Punjab National Bank 18,760 2,048 = - 18,760 2,583 - -

12 |IDBI Bank Ltd 5,492 2,938 - = 5,492 2571 - -

fig | =iV akagiia [Equipmert 11,800 1,947 - - 11,800 1,582 .

Finance Ltd.

14 [HSBC- France 26,147 2,867 446 2,867 26,147 2,502 4485 2,502

158 |China Development Bank* 86,367 2,758 2,670 2,945 86,367 2,394 | 2,670 2,580

16 E?’f:;'mport BN o 21592 | 2,759 667 | 2,945 | 21,502 2394 | 667| 2,580

17 [jrcliancsiGemnmunications 4,500 760 | 40,500 760 | 4,500 395 | 40,500 395
Ltd (Preference Shares})

18 |Total 2,35,727 45,048 2,35,727 45,048

* Facilities recalled




Reliance Telecom Limited

Notes on Accounts to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

2.10.04 Since the Company is under CIRP and claims have been filed by lenders, the overall obligations and
lizbilities including obligation for interest on loans shall be determined during the CIRP. Hence due to non
availability of revised repayment schedule of borrowings, the total loan amount has been disclosed in delay/
default however, the figures of delay/ default are based on original terms of facility and from the date of recall,
where [oans have been recalled.

2.10.05 Apart from above outstanding of Interest, the Company has not provided Interest Expenses of T 159,684
lakh upto March 31, 2025 { Previous year upto March 31, 2024 ¥ 137,827 lakh) calculated based on basic rate of
interest as per terms of loan as at March 31, 2025 and therefore it has not been disclosed.

2.10.06 Preference Shares

(a) 1% Non Convertible, Non Cumulative, Redeemahble Preference Shares
(iy Preference Shares held by Promoters and Holding Company

- No of shares % of Total Shares % Change during
Particulars

e - the year

Reliance Communications Limited, Holding 4 50 00 000 100 Nil

Company {4 50 00 000} (100%) ( Nil)

(ii) Preference Shares are redeemable at any time after expiry of 8 months from the date of allotmant (i.e. March
3, 2003 } and before expiry of 20 years from the date of allotment, at a face value of T 10/ each by one month
notice from the Preference Shareholders; or on expiry of 20 years from the date of allotment at a price of T 100/-
per share (including T 90/- premium per share), in case above option is not exercised.

The said Preference Shares were matured on March 2, 2023, however the same were not redeemed since the
Company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) under Insolvency and Bankruptoy Code,
2016 (IBC).

(b) 1% Redeemable, Non Cumulative, Non Convertible Preference Shares
{iy Preference Shares held by Fellow subsidiary

; f [ o i
Particulars No of shares % of Total Shares % Change during

— the year
Reliance Communications Tamilnadu Limited 13477 000 100% Nil
{RCTL) {1 34 77 000) {100%) { Nily

(i) Preference Shares are redeemable at any time after the date of allctment ({i.e. December 11, 2013) and
before expiry of 20 years from the date of allotment, at 1% yield per annum less dividend paid, if any, at the time
of redemption on issue price (Face value plus premium paid at the time of application) by giving three months
notice to the Preference Shareholders; or on expiry of 20 years from the date of allotment at a price of T 1000/-
per share (including ¥ 990/- premium per share}, in case above option is not exsrcised.

2.10.07 Details of Authorised Capital (Refer Note 2.07}



Reliance Telecom Limited

Notes on Accounts to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note: 2.11
Trade Payables ( Refer Note 2.21 & 2.29) (T in lakh)
As at As at
Bl - March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Due to Micro and 3mall Enterprises 1,347 1,347
Due to Creditors other than Micro and Small Enterprises
Related Parties (Refer Note 2.30} 2 2
Others 55,469 55,440
56,818 56,789
Note: 2.12
QOther Financial Liabilities ( Tin lakh)
. N As at As at
Parliculars  March31,2025  March 31, 2024
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 4,548 4,548
Capital Creditors 18,911 18,500
Other Liabilities*
-From Related Parties* {Refer Note 2.30) 8,785 8,785
-Others** (Refer Note 2.21 & 2.25) 6,41,909 5,54,592
6,72,243 5,84 425

* The amount was received from Reliance Realty Limited during financial year 2018-19. Pending
finalisation of terms, interest has not been charged and the same has been shown as "Other

Financial Liabilities".

**Includes amounts due towards Provision for accrual of expenses, salary payable and other.

Note: 2.13
Other Current Liabilitles { Refer Note 2.21) (% in lakh)
Particulars As at A
o - March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income received in advance 1,325 1,325
Other Liabilities* 2,457 2,459
3,782 3,784

* Includes amounts due towards security deposit, advance from customers and statutory dues.

Note: 2.14
Provisions { Tin lakh)
Particul R a As at As at
it March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Employee Benefits (Refer Note 2.22 & 2.31) 1 1
1 1



Reliance Telecom Limited

Notes on Accounts to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note: 2.15
Other Income

(T in lakh}

Particul For the year ended For the year ended
leutars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest Income 11 11
Miscellaneous Income / Liabilities written back 13 -
24 11
Note: 2.16
Access Charges, License Fees and Network Expenses (¥ in lakh)

For the year ended

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Particulars March 31, 2025
License Fees 599

599
Note: 2.17

Employee Benefits Expenses*

594
599

{Tin lakh)

"~ For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Salaries and Wages 11 56

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds

(Refer Note 2,31} ' 1 1

Employee Welfare and Other Amenities s 1
12 58

*Including Managerial Remuneration (Refer Note 2.30)




Note: 2.18

Finance Costs (T in lakh)
S - For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Interest on Financial Liabilities 40,057 36,403
Other Financial Cost 1,303 1,238
41,360 37,641

2.18.01 Non Provision of Interest , maturity premium and Foreign Exchange Variation
Considering various factors including admission of the Company to debt resolution process under the
IBC with effect from May 15, 2018 and pursuant to the commencement of Corporate Insolvency
Resolution Process (CIRP) of the Company under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC),
there are various claims submitted by the operational creditors, the financial creditors, employees and
other creditors. The Overall obligation and liabilities including obligation for interest on loans and the
principal rupee amount in respect of loans including foreign currency denominated loans shall be
determined during the CIRP and accounting impact/ disclosure, if any, will be given on completion of
CIRP. Further, prior to May 15, 2018, the Company was under Strategic Debt Restructuring (SDR)
and asset monetization and debt resolution plan was being worked out. The Company has not
provided Interest of ¥ 21,757 lakh calculated based on basic rate of interest as per terms of loan and
foreign exchange variation loss of T 4,259 lakh for the year ended March 31, 2025. Had the Company
provided Interest and foreign exchange variation, the Loss would have been higher by ¥ 26,016 lakh
for the year ended March 31, 2025. The Net worth as on March 31, 2025 and as on March 31, 2024
would have been lower by ¥ 2,41,953 lakh and T 2,15,837 lakh respectively. During the previous
years, Interest of ¥ 137,927 lakh, maturity premium on Preference shares of ¥ 40,500 and foreign
exchange variation loss of ¥ 37,510 lakh was not provided during the financial year ended March 31,
2018, March 31, 2019, March 31, 2020, March 31, 2021,March 31, 2022,March 31, 2022 and March
31, 2024. Consistent with the practice followed in earlier years, interest has not been charged on
loans availed from Holding Company & Fellow Subsidiary.

Note: 2.19
General Administration Expenses - ( Tinlakh)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
- March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Professicnal Fees 27 32
CIRP Cost 160 184
Net loss on Foreign currency transactions and
translation 445 260
Other General and Administration Expenses 295 927 428 g04
Payment to Auditors
- Audit Fees 3
- Certification Fees 1 4 1 4
931 a08
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Note : 2.20

Previous Year
Figures of the previous year have been regrouped and reclassified, wherever required. Amount in financial
statements are presented in Rupees in lakh, except as otherwise stated.

Note: 2.21
Going Concern

Pursuant to an application filed by Ericsson India Pvt. Ltd before the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai
Bench ("NCLT") in terms of Section 9 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with the rules and
regulations framed there under ("Code"), the NCLT had admitted the application and ordered the commencement
of corporate insolvency resolution process ("CIRP") of Reliance Telecom Limited (“the Company” or * Corporate
Debtor"} vide its order dated May 15, 2018. The NCLT had appointed Ms. Mitali Shah as the interim resolution
professional for the Company vide its order dated May 18, 2018. However, the Hon'ble National Company Law
Appellate Tribunal ("NCLAT") by an order dated May 30, 2018 had stayed the order passed by the Hon'ble NCLT
for initiating the CIRP of the Company and allowed the management of the Company to function. In accordance
with the order of the Hon'ble NCLAT, Ms. Mitali Shah handed over the control and management of the Company
back to the erstwhile management of the Company on May 30, 2018. Subsequently, by order dated April 30,
2019, the Hon'ble NCLAT allowed stay on CIRP to be vacated. On the basis of the order of the Hon'ble NCLAT,
Ms. Mitali Shah, wrote to the management of the Company on May 02, 2018 requesting the charge, operations
and management of the Company to be handed over back to IRP. Therefore, Ms. Mitali Shah had in his capacity
as IRP taken control and custedy of the management and cperations of the Company from May 02, 2018.
Subsequently, the committee of creditors of the Company pursuant to its meeting held on May 30, 2019 resclved,
with requisite voting share, to replace the existing interim resolution professional, i.e. Ms. Mitali Shah with Mr.
Anish Niranjan Nanavaty as the resolution professional for the Company in accordance with Section 22(2) of the
Code. Subsequently, upon application by the CoC in terms of Section 22(3) of the Code, the NCLT appointed Mr.
Anish Niranjan Nanavaty as the resolution professicnal for the Company ("RP") vide its crder dated June 21,
2019, which was published on June 28, 2019 on the website of the NCLT. Accordingly, the IRP handed over the
matters pertaining to the affairs of the Company to the RP as on June 28, 2019 who assumed the powers of the
board of directors of the Company and the responsibility of conducting the CIRP of the Company,

On the basis of the Hon'ble NCLAT's order dated April 30, 2018, the CIRP in respect of the Company has been re-
commenced and interim resolution professional has been appointed. Subsequently, appointment of Mr. Anish
Niranjan Nanavaty as the Resolution Professional {RP) of the Company has been confirmed by the NCLT vides
its order dated June 21, 2019, which was published on June 28, 2019 on the NCLT's website.

An application {IA No. 749 of 2023) has been filed by a resclution applicant before NCLT for substitution of
resclution applicant in the resclution plan submitted. NCLT vide order dated August 22, 2023 had directed the
resolution professional of the Company to place on record necessary declaration(s) in relation to compliance with
the provisions of Secticn 29A, after getting the confirmation of CoC of the Company in relation thereto. However,
the status of the |IA was inadvertently reflecting as disposed creating difficulties in filing of this compliance
affidavit. The RP had been attempting to liaison with the registry in this regard and alsc mentioned the matter
multiple times to seek correction in its status, On December 19, 2024, the NCLT was pleased to direct the matter
to be listed on January 21, 2025 for filing of the affidavit and passing of necessary orders by the NCLT. On
January 21, 2025, in view of the submissions, the Bench was pleased to reserve the matter for orders. By order
dated January 21, 2025, NCLT has dismissed the |A filed by UV Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
("UVARCL"). An appeal bearing Company Appeal (AT) (Insolvency) No. 422 of 2025 has been filed by UVARCL
before NCLAT. The same was listed on April 18, 2025 where the Bench passed directions to the Respondents to
file their reply and posted the matter on May 14, 2025. The Bench also remarked that UVARCL was free to
approach the Bench for appropriate directions in the event that a liquidation application was filed in the
meanwhile. On May 14, 2025, the counsel appearing on behalf of UVARCL gave a brief background to the
matter. The counsel appearing on behalf of the CoC indicated that they had ne objection if the substitution was
allowed and sought time to file a reply. The Hon'ble Court directed the CoC to file its reply in two weeks and
granted fwo weeks thereafter for rejoinder. The matter is now listed on July 09, 2025. Further, pursuant to the
discussicns with the CoC members, the RP has filed an application before Hon'ble NCLT seeking necessary
clarifications/ appropriate directions on the way ahead in the CIRP of the Company.
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Pursuant to strategic transformation programme, as a part of asset monetization and resolution plan of the
Company, Reliance Communications Limited, the Holding company and Reliance Infratel Limited, with the
permission of and on the basis of suggestions of the Lenders, had entered into definitive binding agreements with
Reliance Jio Infocomm Limited (RJio) for monetisation of certain specified assets on December 28, 2017 for sale
of Wireless Spectrum, Towers, Fibre and Media Convergence Nodes (MCNs). Vide a termination agresment
dated March 18, 2019, the said asset sale agreements were terminated by mutual consent on account of various
facters and developments including inter alia non receipt of consents from lenders and permission/ approvals
from Department of Telecommunication.

On completion of the CIRP, the Company will carry out a comprehensive review of all the assets including
balances lying in Goods and Service Tax and liabilities and accordingly provide for impairment of assets and
write back of liabilities, if any. Receivable and Payable balances are subject to confirmation from the respective
parties.

The Company had filed an application with the Department of Telecommunication (DoT) for migration of Telecom
License for Kolkata Circle from Unified Access Service License (UASL) to the Unified License regime (UL} on July
16, 2021 (which was supposed to expire on September 26, 2021}, On August 9, 2021, the DoT has issued a
letter to the Corporate Debtor requiring payments of various categories of certain amounts such as 10% of the
Adjusted Gross Revenue (AGR) dues, deferred spectrum installments falling due within the CIRP period, etc.
against the telecom licenses, stating such dues to be in the nature of “current dues” and prescribing such
payment as a pre-condition to the consideration/processing of the migration applications (“DeT Letter’). On
August 18, 2021, the Company has issued a letter to DoT clarifying that the various categories of dues stipulated
by the DoT are not in the nature of the "current dues” and are to be resolved within the framework of the Code
(being dues that pertain to the pericd prior to May 7, 2019) and/ or are not payable at present, and requesting that
making payments against the said dues should not be mandated as a pre-conditicn for further processing of the
migration applications filed by the Company.

In light of the urgency of the matter, the RP had filed an application before the Hon'ble NCLT praying that the DoT
inter alia be restrained from taking any action which may interfere with the continued hoiding of the telecom
spectrum of the Company.,

The issue under consideration by the Hon'ble NCLT relates to whether the dues being claimed by DoT in its letter
of August 9, 2021 for the purposes of processing the license renewal/ migration applications of the Company are
in the nature of “current dues” (within the meaning of the Explanation to Section 14(1) of the Code) and therefore,
payable during the CIRP period.

Simultaneously, a petition has been filed before the TDSAT seeking directions for migration of its Kelkata Circle
telecom license, in view of the Guidelines for Grant of Unified License dated March 28, 2016 issued by the DoT,
not prescribing pre-condition for any payment to be made prior to the migration of the telecom licenses.

Similarly, Reliance Communications Limited (RCOM), the holding company, had filed applications with DoT for
migration of its various telecom licenses to UL wherein the DoT has sought for payment of certain dugs as
“current dues” (being dues that pertain to the period prior to May 7, 2019 and are not payable at present) as a pre-
condition for consideration of the application. The RP has filed an application in the Hon'ble NCLT and a petition
before the Hon'ble TDSAT in this regard (The Company matter's are also heard together with RCOM license
migration matters). On September 23, 2021, the Hon'ble TDSAT has directed that “Since the matters are similar
in nature, in the interest of justice and uniformity the interim order of status quc as operating in TP No. 31 of 2021
shall operate in this matter also till the next date. It will be in the interest of petitioner to expedite the proceeding
pending before the Hon'ble NCLT and try its best to produce the orders passed by that Tribunal by the next date.
On March 15, 2022, the DOT had been granted 6 weeks' time by TDSAT to file the reply, and rejoinder was tc be
filed before the next date of hearing. The TDSAT further directed that the interim order passed by the TDSAT
vide order dated September 23, 2021 shall stand continuing to be operative during the pendency of the petitions.
On July 29, 2024, where the counsels apprised the TDSAT that matter is still pending in NCLT. The matter was
last listed on May 2, 2025 and now has been adjourned to September 26, 2025.

Considering these developments including, in particular, the RP having taken over the management and control
of the Company inter alia with the objective of running them as geing concern, the financial statements continue
to be prepared on going concern basis. However, since the Company continues to incur losses, current liabilities
exceed current assets and the Company has defaulted in repayment of borrowings, payment of regulatory and
statutory dues and pending application of renewal of a Telecom License, these events Indicate that material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on Company’s ability t¢. continue as a going cancern. ™,
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Note: 2.22

Movement of Provisions {Current/ Non current)

Note: 2.23

Provision for Retirement Benefits (Refer Note 2.31)

o - - X in lakh)
Current Non Current
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

‘March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Balances at the beginning of the year 1 - 2 1
Additional Provision/{Reduction) - 1 -2
Balances at the close of the year 1 . 2

Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitment (as represented by the Management)

(iy Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital

X in lakh)

As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2025 WMarch 31, 2024

accounts (net of advances) and not provided for Nil Nit
(i) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts* 1.93,155 1,86,543

* These includes demands received from Sales Tax/ Service Tax/ Entry Tax/ Goods and Service Tax
authorities in various States/ Department of Telecommunications, which are pending before the Appellate
Authorities/ Tribunal/ High Court/ TDSAT and the stay orders are granted against the said demands. The
Company is confident that the aforesaid claims will be successfully contested.

The Company has deposited ¥ 3,156 lakh ( Previous year ¥ 3,156 lakh) under protest with the Sales tax/
Service tax/ Entry tax authorities/ Income tax/ Department of Telecommunications against the demand,
which are included in Income Tax Assets, Deposits and Advances and Receivables-Others (Refer Note
2.02" Income Tax Assets and 2.05 "Other Current Assets").

DoT has filed an application in NCLT for condonation of delay in filing claim of ¥ 71,662 lakh towards
license service areas [Customer application form (CAF) and Electromagnetic field penalties (EMF)] which
was listed on April 17, 2024, where RP Counsel briefly made submissions and the NCLT enquired if the
said claim is reflecting in the books of accounts of the Corporate Debtor and / or has already been
included as part of DOT claims. RP counsel tock time to take instructions in this regard. The NCLT
accordingly adjourned the DOT application to May 08, 2024 and thereafter due to paucity of time to July
03, 2024, The next date of hearing is June 08, 2025, The said claim is included in above mentioned
"Claim against the Company not acknowledged as debts" since the same is subjudice.

(iii) Guarantees given including on behalf of other
companies for business purpose B , 8

(iv) Spectrum Charges

Department of Telecommunication (DoT) had, during the earlier year, issued demand on the Company for ¥ 470
lakh towards levy of one time Spectrum Charges, being the prospective charges for holding GSM Spectrum
heyond 6.2 MHz for the period from July 1, 2008 to December 31, 2012 and prospective charge of ¥ 16,877 lakh
for GSM spectrum held beyond 4.4 MHz for the period from January 1, 2013 till the expiry of the initial terms of
the respective Licenses. Based on a petition filed by the Company (T.P. No. 220 of 2018), the Hon'ble TDSAT,
vide its order dated February 4, 2019, set aside the impugned crders and demands for OTSC except for Bihar
circle. The said order passed by Hon'ble TDSAT has been stayed by Hon'ble Supreme Court vide its order dated
August 19, 2012 and the matter remains sub-judice .
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(v)

(vi)

(vif)

(vili)

Considering various factors including admission of the Company to debt resolution process under the Code with
effect from May 15, 2018 and pursuant to the commencement of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process
(CIRP} of the Company under the Code, there are various claims submitted by the operational creditors, the
financial creditors, employees and other creditors. The Qverall obligations and fiabilities including obligation for
interest on loans and the principal rupee amount in respect of loans including foreign currency denominated loans
shall be determined during the CIRP.

Consequent to the investigations by an investigative agency (CB!) in relation to the entire telecom sector in India,
certain preliminary charges were framed by a Trial Court in October, 2011 against a Director and the Company.
The Special CBI Judge vide judgement dated December 21, 2017 has acquitted the persons so named. CBI has
filed an appeal before the Hon'ble Delhi High Court challenging the said Trial Court order. These proceedings
have no impact on the business, operations, and/ or licenses of the Company and, even more so, are not
connected in any manner to any other group companies.

The Company has been served with copies of writ petitions filed by Mr. Punit Garg and certain others, being
directors of the Company, its holding company and its fellow subsidiary before the Hon'ble High Court of Delhi,
challenging the provisions of the RB! Master Directions on Frauds- Classification and Reporting by commercial
banks and select Fis bearing No. RBI/ DBS/ 2016-17/ 28 DBS. CO. CFMC. BC. No. 1/ 23.04.001/ 2016-17 dated
July 1, 2016 ("Circular”) and the declaration by certain banks classifying the loan accounts of the Company,
Relrance Communications Limited ("RCOM") and Reliance Infratel Limited (“RITL") (RITL's implementation of
resolution plan has been completed and RITL has ceased to be a fellow subsidiary of the Company w.ef.
December 22, 2022) being fraudulent in terms of the Circular.

On May 12, 2023, the Hon'ble Delhi High Court in light of the judgement dated March 27, 2023 in SBI vs. Rajesh
Agarwal [2023 SCC Online SC 342] has disposed of the said petitions filed by Mr. Punit Garg, setting aside the
actions taken against the petitioners under the Circutar . The Supreme Court has held that since the Circular does
not expressly provide an opportunity of hearing to the borrowers before classifying their account as fraud, audi
alteram partem has to be read into the provisions of the directions to save them from the vice of arbitrariness.

It has further been made clear vide the Delhi High Court order, that if any FIR has heen lodged, preceedings
proceeded thereto will remain unaffected by the said order and that it will be open to concerned banks to proceed
in accordance with law in light of the judgement of the Supreme Court.

During the earlier years, certain banks had issued show cause notices to the Corporate Debtor, its holding
company and its fellow subsidiary and certain directors seeking reasons as to why the Corporate Debtor | its
holding company and its fellow subsidiary should not be classified as willful defaulter. Alse, during the earlier year
and in the current year, certain banks have served notice seeking explanation as to why the account of the
Corporate Debtor, its holding company and its fellow subsidiary should not be declared as fraud in terms of
applicable RBI regulations. Further, during the current year, the Corporate Debtor and its holding company
RCOM and in the earlier year, the Company had received intimation of order passed by willful defaulter
identification commitiee of certain banks for inclusion of name of the Company and RCOM and its directors /
guarantors etc in credit information companies (CiCs) list of willful defaulters and seeking representation against
the said order. Further, during the current year, one of the banks has declared the Company as a willful defaulter.
During the current year, one of the banks have served a letter intimating that the bank has classified the account
of the Corporate Debtor and its holding company as fraud as per the applicable Reserve Bank of India {"RBI").
The Corporate Debtor, its holding company and its fellow subsidiary have been responding to said show cause
notices and intimations, from time to time. The Corporate Debtor in its response has highlighted that the
proceedings and the classification of the Corporate Debtor as a wiliful defaulter is barred during the prevailing
moratorium under section 14 of the Code and protection is available in terms of section 32A of the Code and
asserting that accordingly, no action can be said to lie against the Corporate Debtor for classification as fraud and
requested the banks to withdraw the notices. Further, certain banks had issued notices seeking personal hearing
by the authorized representative of the Corporate Debtor, its holding company and its fellow subsidiary in respect
of the aforesaid matter. Hearings were attended to and necessary submissions were made in accordance with
the submissions made earlier in the responses to the show cause notices.
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Note:

Note:

Further, Corporate Debtor and the Holding Company has received a letter dated August 7, 2023 from one of the
banks, vide which the bank has indicated, inter alia, that it has received a forensic audit report dated October 15,
2020 of M/s BDO India LLP wherein certain 'irregularities / anomalies / commissions / omissions’ have been
pointed out by the forensic auditor. The said letter and report were accordingly tabled at the meeting of the
Directors on August 12, 2023. In respect of the same, the bank has sought the views, inter alia, of the erstwhile
management of the Holding Company (*management"} on the said report. The management had expressed that
management views had not been sought prior to the issuance of the report. Further to receipt of a copy of the
filings made before the Hon'ble Delhi High Court in the aforesaid matter, the Holding Company and Corporate
Debtor had provided information to the forensic auditor during the peried from March 2021 to November 2021 and
it is not yet ascertained if the report incorporates and has considered such information. RP however has
maintained that the Holding Company and Corporate Debtor is undergoing corperate insolvency resolution
process in terms of the Code and the forensic audit report prima facie appears to pertain to the period prior to the
CIR process, the Corporate Debtor and the Holding Company has already responded to the letter that the
proceedings and the classification of the Corporate Debtor as a fraud is barred during the prevailing moratorium
under Section 14 of the Code and protection is available in terms of Section 32A of the Code and accordingly, no
action should lie against the Holding Company and Corporate Debtor for classification as fraud and notice against
the Holding Company should be withdrawn and the RP, the Holding Company and Corporate Debtor shall have a
limited responsibility to only share any information sought from it. Currently, there is no impact of such
notices/letter issued from banks, in the financial statements.

2.24
Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company is not required tc spend towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as per Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013, since there is no average profit in the last 3 years calculated as per the provisions of the
Act.

2.25

License Fees and Spectrum Fee demands on account of Special Audit and Comptroller and Audit General
(CAG)

The Hon'ble Supreme Court of India, vide its order dated October 24, 2019 had dismissed the pstition filed by the
telecom operators and agreed with the interpretation of the Department of Telecommunications (DaT) to the
definition of Adjusted Gross Revenue (AGR) under the license.

On September 01, 2020, Hon'ble Supreme Court pronounced the judgement in the AGR maiter ("SC
Judgement”). It has framed various questions in respect of companies under insolvency and in respect of such
questions, the Court has held that the same should be decided first by the Hon'ble NCLT by a reasoned order
within 2 months, and that it has not gone into the merits in this decision.

The RP of the Corporate Debtor had filed intervention applications before the NCLAT in the appeal filed by the
Depariment of Telecommunications against the resolution plan approval orders of the Aircel companies (wherein
the NCLAT was adjudicating on the questicns framed by the Hon'ble Supreme Court in the SC Judgement). The
RP had also filed written legal submissions in this regards with the NCLAT. The Hon'ble NCLAT has pronounced
its judgement dated April 13, 2021 setting out its findings on the questions framed in the SC Judgement. The RP
has filed appeals in respect of the Corporate Debtor and RCOM against the judgement of the NCLAT before the
Supreme Court. Cn August 2, 2021, the appeals were listed when the bench issued notice in the matier and
tagged the same with Civil Appeal Nao 1810 of 2021 (being the appeal filed by the COC of Aircel companies} and
also allowed the application seeking permission to file the civil appeal. On February 22, 2022, the Supreme Court
granted a period of six weeks to the DoT to file counter affidavit. The matter was listed on May 2, 2022 wherein
the SC directed the matter tc be tentatively listed in the third week of July 2022. The matter was mentioned on
August §, 2022, for early listing for arguments, but the Supreme Court directed the matter to be listed after sight
weeks. The matter was thereafter listed on October 11, 2022, on which date, the Supreme Court directed that the
matter be listed after six weeks. Further, the Supreme Court stated that the parties were to fiie a common
compilation post discussion with each other, and file brief written submissions within a peried of six weeks.
Thereafter, Nazeer J retired and the matter came up for listing before a reconstituted bench comprising Justice V.
Ramasubramaniam and Justice Pankaj Mittal on February 21, 2023. However, the matter was not taken up due to
paucity of time and was tentatively listed on May 10, 2023, Since the matter was not reflected in the list for May
10, 2023, it was mentioned by the counsel for RP and the Bench directed listing on July 18, 2023
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The matter was listed on July 18, 2023 before a bench comprising Justice Sanjiv Khanna and Justice Bela M
Trivedi, and cnce again it was not taken up due to paucity of time. The matter was mentioned on August 4, 2023
for listing on the shortest possible date and the Bench directed listing on any Tuesday, but no specific date was
allotted. The appeals were thereafter listed on September 12, 2023 but could not be heard due to paucity of time.
Aircel Monitoring Committee has filed an application seeking sale of right to use spectrum subject to proceeds
being kept in escrow account, which shall be subject t¢ outcome of the Supreme Court matter. The Corporate
Debtor and RCOM RP has alsc filed applications seeking similar dispensation for Corporate Debtor and RCOM
as well. Further, DoT was asked to file reply within two weeks to the application filed by Aircel Monitoring
Committee {I.A. No. 186218/2023 in Clvil Appeal No. 2263/2021) vide order dated September 18,2023 and the
DoT has accordingly filed its reply on October 9, 2023

The appeals were mentioned before the Hon'ble Supreme Court, on July 10, 2024 and it was requested that the
said appeals not be deleted from the cause list of August 02, 2024. Hon'ble Justice Khanna took note of the
same and directed that the appeals may not be deleted from cause list dated August 02, 2024.

The appeals were thereafter listed before a bench comprising of Hon'ble Justice Pamidighantam Sri Narasimha
and Hon'ble Justice Sandeep Mehta on September 03, 2024. On September 03, 2024, the bench was pleased to
admit the captioned appeal alongside the connected appeals and list them for final hearing in the week
commencing from Cctober 14, 2024. However, the appeals did not appear in the list in the week commencing
from October 14, 2024 and were thereafter listed on October 23, 2024. On Cctober 23, 2024 the bench heard a
background of the matter, and a description of key issues involved therein. The bench directed that the matter be
listed before it in the week commencing from November 04, 2024. Subsequently, the newly appointed Hon'ble
Chief Justice of India passed a notification dated 16 November 2024 vide which it was directed that no regular
matters shall be taken up for hearing until further orders. Thus, as per the directions of the Chief Justice of India,
the above appeals along with other regular matters were not being listed for hearing for some time.Upon the
recommencement of the listing of regular matters, a Istter of urgency dated January 08, 2025 was filed before the
Registrar, Supreme Court of India seeking urgent listing of the above appeals.On January 10, 2025, counse! for
the RP apprised the Ld. Bench about the urgency in the matters and sought an early listing of the appeals.
Accordingly, the matter was listed for further hearing on January 16, 2025. The appeals did not reach on January
16, 2025 and accordingly the matter was taken up on January 23, 2025. On January 23, 2025, the appeals could
not reach as the Bench rose and cfarified that the appeals will be rolled over to next Thursday. On January 30,
2025, the appeals could not be listed due to paucity of time, the counsel for RP sought for the appeals to be listed
high on board. Accordingly, the Bench stated that they shall consider the request and appeals may be listed on
February 06, 2025. On February 06, 2025, the bench did not preside and accordingly the matter was not heard.

On February 15, 2025, a letter of urgency was filed and consequently the matter was mentioned on February 17,
2025. The mentioning was allowed and the matter was listed on February 20, 2025. However, due to paucity of
time, the matter could not reach and it was rolled over to next week. Subsequently, the matter did not come up on
February 27, 2025, thus, the matter was conce again orally mentioned seeking urgent listing, to which Hon'ble
Bench remarked that they shall consider the same. The matter was thereafter mentioned again on March 27,
2025, where the Hon'ble Bench passed an order stating that the matter would be taken up in April 2025. Cn
April 22, 2025, it was enquired from the Registry of the Hon'ble Supreme Court regarding the listing of the same,
to which the Registry responded that since the matters which had been given a specific date had exceeded the
allowed number of matters, the captioned appeal was not listed on Thursday's list. The matter was mentioned
again before the Hon'ble Court and the request was not accommodated. Thereafter, on May 08, 2025, the
appeals were mentioned and early listing was sought, however the request could not be accommodated as the
Hon'ble Court had a large number of matters and stated that the appeals shall be considered post the summer
vacation. Vide the order dated May 08, 2025, the appeals now stand listed on July 24, 2025.

The DoT had during the pendency of the various proceedings simultaneously directed Special Audit in relation to
the computation of License fee, Spectrum fee, applicable interest and penalties thereon, which is under progress
for the financial year 2015-16 onwards. In this regard, the Corporate Debtor had provided for estimated liability
aggregating to ¥ 547,080 lakh upto the previous year ended March 31, 2024 and has provided additional charge
of ¥ 85,786 lakh during the year ended March 31, 2025, respectively and shown as exceptional items which may
undergo revision based on demands from DoT and /7 or any developments in this matter.

Considering various factors including admission of the Company to resolution process under the Code and the
moratorium applicable under the Code, discharge of the aforesaid liability will be dealt with in accordance with the
Code (subject to orders in the relevant judicial proceedings).
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Note: 2.26
Lease

The Assets of the Company are held for sale as per Ind AS 105 and being short term in nature and accordingly
lease agreements are considered to be short term in nature hence Ind AS 116 has not been applied.

Ncte: 2.27

2.27.1 Financial Instruments
The fair value of financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liuidation sale.
Since the Company is under CIRP, fair valuation of financial instruments has not been carried out. The carrying
value of financial instruments by categories are as follows:

(T in lakh)

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Particulars

Financial assets at amortised cost:

Cash and cash equivalents {Refer Note 2.04) 8 208
Trade receivables (Refer Note 2.03) 4,470 4,470
Total o 4,478 4,768
Financial assets at fair value through Profit and Nil Nil
Loss:
Financial assets at fair value through other Nil )
Comprehensive Income: : ol
Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
Trade payables {Refer note 2.11) 56,818 56,789
Other financial liabilities (Refer Note 2.12) 6,72,243 5,684,425
Borrowings (Refer Note 2.10) and Deferred payment
liabilities ( Refer Note 2.08) 11,67,236 11,26,514
Total ) 18,96,297 17,867,728
- - - - (T in lakh)
. As at As at
Rarticulrs March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Financial liabilities at fair value through Profit and Loss: ) ' Nil Nil
Financial Liabilities at fair value through other Comprehensive Income: Nil Nil

2.27.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

Activities of the Company expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Company’s financial liabilities comprise of borrowings, trade payable and other liabilities to manage its
operations and the financial assets include trade receivables, deposits, cash and bank balances, cther
receivables etc. arising from its operation.

Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) has been initiated in case of the Company under the
Provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (the Code). Pursuant to the order, the management of
affairs of the Company and powers of board of directors of the Company stands vested with the Resolution
Professional ("RP”) appointed by the Hon'ble NCLT. The framework and the strategies for effective management
will be established post implementation of Resolution Plan. Presently, the financial risk management activities are
restricted to management of current assets and liabilities of the company and the day to day cash flow.
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Market risk

The Company also deals internationally and hence, a portion of the business is transacted in several currencies.
Consequently, the Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk to the extent that there is mismatch between the
currencies in which its sales and services, purchases from overseas suppliers and borrowings in various foreign
currencies. Market Risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates
will affect income or value of its helding financial assets/ instruments. The exchange rate between rupee and
foreign currencies has changed substantially in recent years and may fluctuate significantly in the future. As a
result operations of the Company are affected as rupee appreciates/ depreciates against US Dollar. Since the
Company is under CIRP, it is not required to meet any loan or interest obligation till the resolution plan is
implemented. As the overall obligation and liabilities shall be determined during CIRP, foreign currency loans are
stated at exchange rate as at March 31, 2018,

Foreign Currency Risk from financial instruments as of : - (X in lakh)
___March 31,2025 S March 31,2024

Particulars U.8. dollars Other Total U.S. dollars Other Currency Total

Currency

Trade Receivables - - B - - -

Borrowings {1,34,106) - (1,34,108)  (1,34.108) - (1,34,108)

Trade payables and

Cther Liabilities (21,543) (603) (22,146) (21,113} {588} (21,701)

Net assets/ (liabilities) (1,55,649) ~ (603)  {1,56,252) (1,55,219) {588) {1,55,807)

Sensitivity Analysis
Not relevant till the time resolution plan is finalised.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate
risk is the risk of changes in fair values of fixed interest bearing investments because of fluctuations in the interest
rates, in cases where the borrowings are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Cash flow interest rate risk
is the risk that the future cash flows of floating interest bearing investments will fluctuate because of fluctuations
in the interest rates. Since the Company is under CIRP, it could not meet interest obligation during the year and
shall be finalised when resolution plan is implementead.

Exposure to interest rate risk/ Sensitivity Analysis
Not relevant till the time resolution plan is finalised,

Derivative financial instruments
The Company does not hold derivative financial instruments.

The Company offsets a financial asset and a financial liability when it currently has a legally enforceable right ta
set off the recognized amounts and the company intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assat and
settle the liability simultanecusly.

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the customer/ counter party resulting in a financial loss.
The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is carrying value of respective financial assets.

Trade receivables and unbilled revenue are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from the
customers. Credit risk has always been managed by each business segment through credit approvals,
establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of customers to which the Company
grants credit terms in the normal course of business. On account of adoption of ind AS 109, the Company uses
expected credit 1oss (ECL) model to assess the impairment loss or gain. ECL methodology depends on whether
there is any significant increase in credit risk. In case of significant increase in credit risk, life time ECL is used;
otherwise twelve month ECL is used. The Company uses a provision matrix to compute the expected credit loss
allowance for trade receivables and unbilled revenues. The provision mafrix takes into account available extemal
and internal credit risk factors such as default risk of industry, credit default swap quotes, credit ratings from
international credit rating agencies and historical experience for the customers, Since the Company is under
going CIRP, any impairment relating to Trade recsivables will be reviewed and recognised upon completion and
implementation of resolution plan.
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Notes on Accounts to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note:

Liquidity risk

The Company is under CIRP. The Company depends upon receipt from Trade receivables and delay in
realisation as well as vendor payments can severely impact the current level of operation. Liquidity crises had led
to default in repayment of principal and interest to lenders. Since the Company is under CIRP, it is not required to
meet any loan or interest obligation tili the reseolution plan is implemented.

Liquidity risk is the financial risk that is encountered due to uncertainty resulting in difficulty in meeting its
obligations. An entity is exposed to liquidity risk if markets on which it depends are subject to loss of liquidity for
any reason; extraneous or intrinsic to its business operations, affecting its credit rating or unexpected cash
outflows. A position can be hedged against market risk but still entail liguidity risk. Prudence requires liquidity risk
to be managed in addition to market, credit and other risks as it has tendency to compound other risks. It entails
management of asset, liabilities focused on a medium to leng-term perspective and future net cash flows on a day-
by-day basis in order to assess liquidity risk.

Liquidity Periodic budget and rofling forecasts shall be determined during CIRP.

2.28
Earnings per Share (EPS}

R - - For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

(a) Profit/ (Loss) attributable to Equity Shareholders (Z in lakh) (used as (42,878) (39,195)
numerater for calculating Basic and Diluted EPS)

{b) Weighted average number of Equity Shares (used as 8,50,00,000  8,50,00,000
denominator for calculating Basic and Diluted EPS)

(c) Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share of ¥ 10 each (3) {50.44) (46.11)

Basic and Diluted EPS ( after Exceptional ltems)

(a) Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders (T in lakh) (used as numerater (1,28,664) {1,19,509)
for calculating Basic and Diluted EPS)

(b) Weighted average number of Equity Shares (used as 8,50,00,000 8,50,00,0C0
denominator for calculating basic and Diluted EPS)
{cy Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share of ¥ 10 each (3) (151.37) (140.60)




Reliance Telecom Limited

Notes on Accounts to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note: 2.29
2.29.01 Disclosure under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2008 (MSMED) which came into force from
QOctober 2, 2006, certain disclosures are required to be made relating to MSME. On the basis of the information
and records available with the Company, the following disclosures are made for the amounts due to the Micro,

Small and Medium Enterprises.

— - o N % in lakh)
For tha year For the year
Particulars ended ended

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

{iy Principal amount due to any supplier as at the year end 1,459 1,459
{fiy Interest due tc suppliers and remaining unpaid as at year end 2,067 1,782
(iiy Amount of Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the - -
MSMED, alengwith the amount of the payment made to the supplier
beyond the appeinted day during the accounting year
{iv) Payment made to the enterprises beyond appointad date under Section - -
16 of MSMED ¥ 46 400
{v} Amount of Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making - -
payment, which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
year but without adding the interest specified under MSMED
¥ 15,146 ( Previous year ¥ Nil)
{vi) Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each 2,067 1,782
accounting year
{vii) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 1,618 1,372
succeeding years, untll such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprises for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of MSMED
2.29.02 Trade Payables Ageing Schedule o £ in lakh)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars - Total
Not due Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
- B _year - years
{ii MSME - - - - 1,396 1,396
) ) -} () (1,396) (1.396)
(i} Others - 7 - - 55415 55,422
{- {13) (-) () (55,375) (55,393}
(i) Disputed dues — MSME ; _ : : - -
- ) ) -} ) )
{iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - .
SIS S () ) Q)
Total 7 - - 56,811 56,818
(-} (13) -} (5} (56,771) (56,789)




Reliance Telecom Limited

Notes on Accounts to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note: 2.30

Related Parties
As per the Indian Accounting Standard ('Ind AS") 24 of "Related Party Disclosures”, the disclosure of transactions
with the related parties as defined therein are given below. All transactions entered into by the Company with
related parties, were in ordinary course of business and cn arm's length basis.

A List of related parties

1

O oo @ ;P WM

10
11

Reliance Innoventures Private Limited Ultimate Holding Company (upto February 6, 2019)
Reliance Communications Limited (RCOM) Holding Company

Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited (RCIL}

Reliance Webstore Limited (RWSL) Fellow subsidiary

Reliance Realty Limited (RRL)
Reliance Communications Tamilnadu Limited (RCTL)

Reliance Capital Limited (Upto March 19, 2025) Enterprises over which Promoter of Holding
Reliance General Insurance Company Limited (Upto March 19,202(]  Company having control

Reliance Telecom Ltd. Employees Group Gratuity Assurance

Scheme } Employee Benefits Trust
Reliance Telecom Lid. Employees Superannuation Scheme
Shri Jigar Joshi - Company Secretary and Manager Key Managerial Person (KMP)

B Transactions during the year with related parties
(Figures relating to current year are reflected in Bold, relating to previous year are reflected in brackets and

(i

(i)

italic.)
X in lakh)
Particulars Holding Fellow Enterprises Employee KMP Total
Company Subsidiaries over which Benefits
Promoter of Trust
Holding
Company
having
control
Advances/ Other Receivables o
25 806 - 50 - 881
{32) {806} - {32) - (870)
Trade Payable
- 2 - - - 2
» (2} = . - {2)
Other Financial Liabilities
- 6,785 - - - 6,785

. (6,785) ; 5 - (6,785
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Notes on Accounts to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(iv)

%

(vi)

(vii)

Particulars Holding Fellow

Company Subsidiaries

Loans Taken

Opening Balance as on April 1, 2024
2,35,588 -
(2,35,588) -

Add: Taken/Adjusted during the year
679 .

Less: Repayment/ Adjusted during the year

Balance as on March 31, 2025
2,368,267 -
(2,35,588) -
Preference Shares including Share Premium
4,500 1,34,770
{4,500) (1,34,770)

Corporate 2,14,146 -
Guarantee on

behalf of the {2,09,887) -
Company

Managerial Remuneration
Shri Jigar Joshi - -

(¥ in lakh)
Enterprises Employee KMP Total
over which Benefits
Promoter of Trust
Holding
Company
having
control
3 = - 2,35,588
N = . (2,35,588)
= = - 679
" - - 2,36,267
- B - (2,35,588)
- - - 1,398,270
- - - (1,39,270)
i i i 2,14,146
- - - (2,09,887)
= - 11 11
- = (9) (9

The following table describes the components of compensation paid or payable to key management personnel for
the services rendered during the year ended:

Particulars

Salaries and other benefits

Contributions to defined benefit plans

T 44,277 { Previous year ¥ 38,931)

Contributions to defined contribution plans
¥ 17,749 { Previous year T 15,606)

Total

 in lakh)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
- 11 9
11 9
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Notes on Accounts to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
Note: 2.31

Employee Benefits

2.31.01 Gratuity:

(ii)

In accordance with the applicable Indian laws, the Company provides for the gratuity, a defined benefit retirement
plan (Gratuity Plan) for all employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a fump sum payment to vested employess, at
retirement or termination of employment, an amount based on respective employee's last drawn salary and for the
years of employment with the Company.

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (Gratuity Act). The Company is bound to pay
the statutory minimum gratuity as prescribed under Gratuity Act. There are no minimum funding requirements for
a gratuity plan in India. The Company's philosophy is to fund the benefits based on its own liquidity and tax
position as well as level of underfunding of the plan vis-a-vis settlements. The management is responsible for the
overall governance of the plan. The management have cutscurced the investment management of the fund to
insurance company which in turn manage these funds as per the mandate provided to them by the trustees and
applicable insurance and other regulations.

The Company operates its gratuity and superannuation plans through separate trusts which is administered and
managed by the Trustees. As on March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, the contributions towards the plans have
been invested in Insurer Managed Funds.

The plan is of a final salary defined benefit in nature which is sponsored by the Company and hence it
underwrites all the risks pertaining to the plan. In particular, there is a rigk for the Cormpany that any significant
change in salary growth or demographic experience or inadequate returns on underlying plan assets can result in
an increase in cost of providing these benefits to employees in future.

The define benefit plan exposed the Company at actuarial risk such as logentivity risk, interest risk and market
(Investment) risk.

The following table set out the status of the Gratuity Plan as required under Indian Accounting Standard ("Ind
AS™M-19 "Employee Benefits",
(T in lakh)

As at As at
March 31,2028 WMarch 31, 2024

Particulars

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obligation

Obligation at beginning of the year 2 3
Service cost ¥ 18,802 - 1
Interest cost ¥ 17,800 ( Previous year ¥ 23,675) - -
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss  ( Previous year ¥ 20,701) (2) -
Benefits paid - (2)
Obligation at year end ¥ 35,605 - 2

*Defined benefit obligation liability as at the balance sheet is wholly funded by the Company
Change in plan assets

Plan assets at beginning of the year, at fair value 33 33
Expected return on plan assets 3 2
Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) (Previous year ¥ 22,154) 3

Contributions 11 -
Benefits - (2)
Plan assets at year end, at fair value 50 33
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Notes on Accounts to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(i)

(iv}

(V)

(vi}
(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

)

(X in lakh}

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Reconciliation of present value of 'cFé_obliEation and the fair value of the plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 50 33
Present value of the defined benefit obligations at

the end of the year (¥ 35,605) - 2
Liability/ (Advance) recognised in the Balance Sheet (50) {31
Expense Recognised in Profit or Loss

Service cost ¥ 16,802 - 1
Interest Cost (3) (2}
Total (3) (1)
Amount Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Actuarial {Gain)/Loss on Obligaticn (Previous year (3 20,701)) {2} -
Actuarial {(Gain)/ Loss on Plan Assets (Previous year ¥ (22,154) {3} -
Total (Previous year T {1,453)) {5) -
Investment details of plan assets - 100% of the plan assets are invested in balanced Fund Instruments

Actual return on plan assets 6 2
Assumptions

Interest rate 6.54% 7.06%
Estimated return on plan assets 6.54% 7.06%
Salary Growth rate 0.00% 0.00%

*The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority,
promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand factors in the employment market.

Particulars of the amounts for the year and previous years

Particulars As at March 31,

- 2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
Present Value of benefit obligation 0 2 3 14 13
7 35,605
Fair value of plan assets 50 33 33 46 44
Excess of {obligation over plan
assets) / plan assets over obligation
50 31 30 32 31

The expected contribution is based on the same assumptions used to measure the company's gratuity obligations
as of March 31, 2025,

Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other
assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.
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(xi)

) @ in lakh)

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Discount rate (+1% movement) { ¥ (715) (Previous year T (3,804))} ; )
Discount rate (-1% movement) { T 752 (Previous year ¥ 3,942} - -
Salary Increase (+1% movement) { T 795 (Previous year T 4,1 83)} - -
Salary Increase (-1% movement) {T (768) (Previous year { T 4,108))} - -

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does
provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

Maturity analysis of defined benefit plan (fund)

Project benefit payable in future from the date of reporting &)
1st following year 12,883 81,906
2nd following year 7,531 50,684
3rd follewing year 5,037 62,222
4th following year 3,368 12,592
5th following year 2,252 8,358
Sum of 5 years onwards 4,534 16,361

2.31.02 Defined contribution plan: -Provident Fund :

Provident Fund contribution of ¥ 40,780 (Previous year ¥ 2 lakh) is recognised as an expense and included in
"Employee Benefit Expenses” (Refer Note 2.17) to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Note: 2.32
Segment Information

The Company is having one reportable segment accordingly Indian Accounting Standard ("Ind AS" )108 -
‘Operating Segment' does not apply to the Company .

Note: 2.33
Capital Management

Capital of the Company, for the purpose of capital management , include issued equity capital and all other equity
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The Company's cbjective when managing the capital
is to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going concern and the Company under going CIRP and
thereby operating as a going concern.

The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio, which Is debt divided by total capital plus debt.

@ in lakh)

. - As at As at
Partictiaes March 31,2025  March 31,2024
(@ Equity )  (15,19,983)  (13.91,324)
(b}  Debt 7,26,764 7,26,085
(c)  Equity+ Debt (a+b) (7,93,219)  (6.65.239)
(d}  Capital Gearing Ratio (b/c) -92% -109%

Capital gearing ratio reflects reduction in equity on account of net losses incurred during the year,
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Note: 2,34
Accounting Ratios
Sr. Name of the Ratio Numerator Denominator _2624-25 2023-24 % Variance #
1. Current Ratio (in Current Current 0.02 ' 0.02 0.00%
times) Assets Liabilities
2. Debt-Equity Total Debt Equity (0.48) {0.52) -7.69%

Ratio (in times)
3. The Company is under going CIRP and does not have any Turnover, Inventory, Purchases and positive Net
worth during the ysar and previous year accordingly other ratio i.e. Debt Service coverage, Return on equity,

Inventory tumover, Trade receivable turover, Trade payable turmover, Net capital tumover, Net profit, Return on
capital employed and Return on investment are not applicable.

# There is no significant change (i.e. more then 25%) in the above mentioned ratios during the year in comparison
fo Previous year,

Note: 2.35
During the year, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any income, previously unrecorded transaction in
the books of account as income, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961,

Note: 2.36
During the year, the Company has not received as well as given advances {excluding transactions in the normal
course of business) or loans or invested funds or provided any guarantee, security or the like from/ to any other
person(s) or entity(ies), directly or indirectly, including any foreign entity{ies).

Note: 2.37

Transaction with Struck off Companies
The Company did not have any material transaction with companies struck off under Section 248 of the
Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

Note: 2.38

Post Reporting Events

No adjusting or significant non-adjusting events have ocourred between the reporting date and the date of
authorisation.

Note: 2.39

Director's disqualification
During financial year 2019-2020, Shri S. Seth, one of the directors had resigned with effect from 15th November,
2019 as Director of the Company and has filed his DIR-11 forms with the Registrar of Companies. The above
menticned resignation was put up to the CoC of the Company for their consideration in accordance with Section
28(1)(j) of the Code. Howsver, CoC of the Company at its meeting held on November 20, 2019 considered the
resignation tendered by the above director and expressed a unanimous view that the resignation cannot be
accepted and instructed the Resoluticn Professional to convey to the director to continue with their duties and
responsibilities as director and provide all cooperation in the corporate insolvency resolution process, at least until
the completion of the insolvency resclution process of the Company.
Due to above-mentioned events, Company has not received necessary annual disclosures as required under
section 164(2) and Section 184(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 from Shri S. Seth Director of the Company.
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Note: 2.40

Audit Trail
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has prescribed a new requirement for companies under the proviso to
Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 inserted by the Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules
2021 requiring companies, which uses accounting software for maintaining its books of accounts. The Companies
shall use only such accounting software, which has a feature of recoerding audit trail of each and every
transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the books of accounts along with the date when such
changes were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled.

The Company uses the accounting software SAP for maintaining books of accounts which has feafures of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all the relevant
transactions recorded in the software, except that the Company has not enabled the feature of recording audit
trail {edit log) at the database ievel for certain direct changes to SAP application (DDL and DML). Further, where
audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated, the audit trail feature has not been tampered with.
Additionally, the audit trail of prior year has been preserved by the Company as per the statutery requirements for
record retention, except for certain database level for accounting software SAP which has been enabled from

Note: 2.41

Authorisation of Financial Statements
Upon application by the CoC in terms of Section 22(3) of the Code, the Hon'ble NCLT appeinted Mr. Anish
Niranjan Nanavaty as the resolution professional for the Corporate Debtor ("RP") vide its order dated June 21,
2019, which was published on June 28, 2018 on the website of the NCLT. Accordingly, the IRP handed over the
matters pertaining to the affairs of the Corporate Debtor to the RP as on June 28, 2019 who assumed the powers
of the board of directors of the Corporate Debtor and the responsibility of conducting the CIRP of the Corporate
Debtor. With respect to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025, the RP has signed the
same solely for the purpose of ensuring compliance by the Corporate Debtor with applicable laws, and subject to
the following disclaimers:

(i) The RP has furnished and signed the report in good faith and accordingly, no suit, prosecution or other legal
proceeding shall lie against the RP in terms of Section 233 of the Code;

(i No statement, fact, information (whether current or historical) or opinion contained herein should be construed
as a representation or warranty, express or implied, of the RP including, his authorized representatives and
advisors;

(i) The RP, in review of the financial statements and while signing this financial statements, has relied upon the
assistance provided by the directors of the Corparate Debtor, and certifications, representations and statements
made by the directors of the Corporate Debter, in relation to these financial statements. The financial statements
of the Corporate Debtor for the year ended March 31, 2025 have been taken on record by the RP solely on the
basis of and on relying the aforesaid certifications, representations and statements of the aforesaid directors and
the management of the Corporate Debtor. For all such information and data, the RP has assumed that such
information and data are in the conformity with the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws with respect to
the preparation of the financial statements and that they give true and fair view of the position of the Corporate
Debtor as of the dates and period indicated therein. Accordingly, the RP is not making any representations
regarding accuracy, veracity or completeness of the data or information in the financial statements.

{(iv) In terms of the provisions of the Code, the RP is required to undertake a review to determine avoidance
transactions, Such review has been completed and the RP has filed the necessary applications with the
adjudicating authority, which are currently sub-judice.”

After review, the Directors of the Corperate Debtor have approved the financial statements at their meeting held
on May 27, 2025 which was chaired by Mr. Anish Niranjan Nanavaty, Resolution Professional {{RP") of the
Corporate Debtor and RP took the same on record basis recommendation from the directors.
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